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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: If everyone could

          3  take their seats, please, we would like to get

          4  started.

          5                 Good morning. As I am sure everyone

          6  knows by now, I am Kathryn Freed, I am the Chair of

          7  the City Council Committee on Contracts.

          8                 I would like to begin by recognizing

          9  my colleagues who are here today. To my left is

         10  Council Member Andrew Eristoff, Council Member

         11  Espada, Council Member Perkins is over here, or was

         12  over here somewhere.

         13                 To my right, first is my counsel

         14  Andrew Neuman, and to his right I would like to

         15  welcome aboard a brand new Committee member,

         16  Christine Quinn, who was just elected from

         17  Manhattan, the West Village, actually.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, welcome

         20  aboard. It is good to have you here.

         21                 And to her right, Council Member

         22  Fiala, from Staten Island.

         23                 Okay, today's oversight hearing, we

         24  will be examining the issue of delays and the

         25  approval of human service contracts.
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          2                 Human service contracts, also

          3  referred to as client service contracts, are

          4  programs contracted by the City on behalf of

          5  third-party clients, including programs to provide

          6  social services, health or medical services, housing

          7  and shelter assistance services, legal services,

          8  employment assistant services, and vocational,

          9  educational or recreational programs.

         10                 These contracts provide vital

         11  services for the day-to-day operation of the City.

         12  In fact, statistics show the human service contracts

         13  are now the dominating force in all public

         14  contracts, more than construction, and in fact they

         15  come to about 53 percent of our budget.

         16                 Recent reports, however, have shown

         17  that various providers of these important services

         18  are experiencing serious financial hardships as a

         19  result of delays in the contract extensions,

         20  renewals and awards.

         21                 A survey prepared by the City Project

         22  in October of 1998 examined the devastating impact

         23  of the delays and outright refusals to fund human

         24  service contracts authorized in the City Council

         25  adopted budget for Fiscal Year 1999.
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          2                 On March 11th, the City Project

          3  sponsored a symposium on the City contracting

          4  process. This symposium demonstrated that many human

          5  service providers are still not receiving the funds

          6  necessary to sustain their operations.

          7                 In addition, the symposium revealed

          8  the general confusion that exists in understanding

          9  the complexities of the City's contracting process.

         10                 During the past few months this

         11  Committee has received correspondence from both the

         12  Office of the Comptroller, and the Mayor's Office of

         13  Contracts, detailing where they respectively believe

         14  the delays in the approval of human service

         15  contracts are stemming from.

         16                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

         17  respond to the growing concern of human service

         18  providers and to try to address the fears, concerns

         19  and frustrations they face when it comes to

         20  understanding the inner workings of the City's

         21  contracting process.

         22                 It is the Committee's intention to

         23  uncover the problems that persist causing these

         24  delays and to discuss what solutions may be

         25  available in order to ease the burdens that
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          2  currently exist.

          3                 The Committee on Contracts has

          4  invited to testify at today's hearings

          5  representatives from the Office of the Comptroller,

          6  the Mayor's Office on Contracts and various human

          7  service providers.

          8                 Before we begin, I will remind

          9  everyone that it is the practice of this Committee

         10  to swear in all witnesses.

         11                 So, our first witness will be the

         12  Mayor's Office on Contracts, and while you are

         13  getting ready I will just point out that there will

         14  be, as very often people will notice that people

         15  will drift back and forth between this Committee and

         16  the Committee in the other room. So it is not that

         17  Council members are not here, it is just that they

         18  may have conflicting committees.

         19                 Okay, our first witness will be

         20  Claude Millman, from the Mayor's Office on

         21  Contracts.

         22                 If you would please raise your right

         23  hand.

         24                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         25  whole truth and nothing but the truth?
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: I do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. And for

          4  the record, again state your name and position and

          5  then please proceed.

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: Good morning. I am

          7  Claude Millman, Director of the Mayor's Office of

          8  Contracts and the City Chief Procurement Officer. I

          9  appreciate the opportunity to appear before you

         10  today.

         11                 As you know, the functions of my

         12  office are to approve certain agency procurement

         13  actions, administer the VENDEX system, monitor

         14  contract performance evaluations, operate the public

         15  access center, provide technical assistance and

         16  guidance to the agencies, examine and propose

         17  changes to procurement rules and procedures, review

         18  non-responsibility appeal determinations, administer

         19  charter-mandated public hearings, participate on the

         20  Human Services Action Group, a partnership of City

         21  and human services agencies, and automate and

         22  streamline the City's procurement operations.

         23                 As I understand it, today's hearing

         24  is being held to determine whether there have been

         25  delays in renewing human service contracts, what, if
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          2  any, impact have such delays had on human service

          3  contractors and their employees, and what, if

          4  anything, can be done to avoid such delays.

          5                 For reasons that I will explain,

          6  delays in the procurement process are all too

          7  common. Impacts on contractor payrolls are

          8  thankfully rare, and much can be done by the Council

          9  and the Administration to improve the system.

         10                 Each year the City is confronted with

         11  the task of processing thousands of human services

         12  procurements by the end of the fiscal year.

         13                 People outside of the procurement

         14  system think of this process as renewing contracts.

         15  Actually, the process includes effecting new awards

         16  often to incumbent contractors, encumbering funds

         17  for multi-year contracts, amending contracts to add

         18  time and money and renewing contracts.

         19                 Each year some procurement actions

         20  are not registered by the June 30th deadline, and as

         21  a result, the City is unable to make payments to the

         22  contractors, even though the contractors are

         23  providing services.

         24                 In some instances the contractors

         25  fail to meet their payrolls. Once the contractor is
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          2  registered, however, funds flow to the contractor

          3  and past debts can be satisfied.  We refer to these

          4  contracts as retroactive.

          5                 While retroactivity is common in the

          6  City's procurement system, missed payrolls are not.

          7                 Indeed, the City has put mechanisms

          8  into place that are designed to prevent such

          9  disruptions.

         10                 For example, in cooperation with the

         11  Fund for the City of New York, the City runs a loan

         12  fund which advances City funds to not-for-profit

         13  human service contractors, to cover shortfalls in

         14  the period between the date a procurement is

         15  approved by the Administration, and the date the

         16  Comptroller registers the contract. As a result, we

         17  believe that the instances in which there are

         18  hardships are very few compared to the thousands of

         19  contracts that are approved and registered during

         20  the procurement cycle's high season.

         21                 Given the safeguards in the system,

         22  when a payroll is disrupted, it is usually for

         23  substantive reasons having nothing to do with the

         24  procurement system, such as litigation, a budget

         25  dispute or a substantive concern regarding the
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          2  contractor or program.

          3                 Every once in awhile a payroll is

          4  missed due to the major flaw in the City's

          5  procurement system. It takes the City an

          6  unreasonably long time to process procurements.

          7                 That flaw affects not only human

          8  service procurements, but construction, services,

          9  goods and almost every purchase the City makes that

         10  is not a small purchase or an emergency procurement.

         11                 To minimize the risk that human

         12  service contractors will miss payrolls due to

         13  delayed procurements, we must address this problem.

         14                 We must join together in an effort to

         15  reduce procurement process cycle times.

         16                 I am not here to cast blame on any of

         17  the participants in the procurement process or to

         18  deny that my office has contributed to procurement

         19  delays. We are all part of the problem. That

         20  includes my office, the Comptroller's Office, the

         21  State-created legal structure under which we

         22  operate, the City agencies that do the contracting,

         23  the Procurement Policy Board, the Council, and even

         24  the for-profit, and non-profit groups with which we

         25  contract. Every participant can take some action to
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          2  improve the system.

          3                 The question that we must ask is, why

          4  does it take approximately six months on average

          5  process a solicitation for competitive sealed bids,

          6  and eight months on average to process a

          7  solicitation for competitive sealed proposals?

          8                 By the way, these two methods are the

          9  primary means of procurement in the City, with

         10  competitive sealed proposals being the most commonly

         11  used method for procuring human services.

         12                 The short answer is that we are

         13  purchasing too much using contracts and we require

         14  too many steps before each contract can be approved.

         15                 Since many of the City's contracts

         16  expire on the same day, there is a natural

         17  bottleneck in our system. Our objective then should

         18  be to relieve the pressure on this bottleneck by

         19  reducing the number of contracts that we need to

         20  procure and reducing the steps required to process

         21  those that remain.

         22                 The vast bulk of the City's

         23  procurement dollars are concentrated in 30 percent

         24  of the contracts.

         25                 We can minimize the risks of
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          2  procurement delays by focusing our efforts and

          3  resources on getting those procurements properly and

          4  timely completed and by reducing the process and

          5  oversight required for the more numerous, smaller

          6  purchases that in effect clog up the system.

          7                 The Council can help make this happen

          8  by confirming the Procurement Policy

          9  Board's decision to raise the small purchase limits,

         10  indeed the Council can take an even greater step

         11  towards progress in this area by raising the small

         12  purchase limit to $100,000 across the board.

         13                 This change in the law would

         14  drastically reduce paperwork for and vastly

         15  accelerate the processing of hundreds of

         16  procurements a year.

         17                 It would also free up agency and

         18  oversight time currently spent on those procurements

         19  -- on those purchases. More than any other steps,

         20  such an action would reduce the likelihood that

         21  human service contractors will miss payrolls due to

         22  procurement process delays.

         23                 Council Member Fisher told this

         24  Committee several months ago that delays were

         25  adversely affecting contractors engaged by the
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          2  Department of Youth and Community Development.

          3                 If the Council further increased the

          4  small purchase level to $100,000 across the Board,

          5  DYCD's procurement task would be eased. Virtually

          6  all of DYCD's procurements scheduled to be awarded

          7  in FY 2000 could be treated as small purchases and

          8  significantly accelerated. The risk of procurement

          9  delays at DYCD would be virtually eliminated.

         10                 All the participants in the

         11  procurement process must cooperate in an effort to

         12  simplify our process. I have prepared a plan of some

         13  steps that can be taken to improve the system.

         14                 I will limit my remarks today to what

         15  the Administration is doing and can do and to what

         16  the Council can do. While the Comptroller's Office

         17  is mentioned in the plan, I am hopeful that the

         18  identified goals will be achieved through a

         19  cooperative effort now being discussed.

         20                 Accordingly, I will not address those

         21  issues.

         22                 Similarly, the Procurement Policy

         23  Board has embraced the need to accelerate the

         24  procurement process. Indeed, the Board has set an

         25  example by reducing and simplifying the PPB rules.
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          2                 Given the momentum in this area, I

          3  will not address the changes that can be made to the

          4  PPB rules to improve our system. Instead, I will

          5  focus on the Charter, the Administrative Code and

          6  our own procurement procedures.

          7                 It is important to emphasize that

          8  there is no magic, single magic cure for delays in

          9  procurement processing.

         10                 Improving our procurement process

         11  cycle times requires that we review each step of the

         12  procurement process and weigh the time each action

         13  takes against the benefit, if any, that it provides

         14  the system.

         15                 Our proposed actions are designed to

         16  address these kinds of details.

         17                 My office hopes to accelerate the

         18  procurement process by creating standardized

         19  procurement documents. To that end, we have created

         20  a draft model streamlined request for proposals

         21  format, which we have provided to you and are

         22  editing with the help of the Human Services Action

         23  Group.

         24                 It is our expectation that a standard

         25  RFP will speed up the preparation and issuance of
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          2  RFPs by City agencies and make it easier for

          3  proposers to understand and respond to our

          4  solicitations.

          5                 Use of a model will also accelerate

          6  oversight reviews.

          7                 As you know, last year we added to

          8  the Mayor's Management Report an improved indicator

          9  on procurement process cycle times.

         10                 That indicator holds City agencies

         11  accountable for the amount of time that their

         12  procurements take.

         13                 Next year the MMR will track

         14  contracts that are registered by City agencies

         15  retroactively, i.e. contracts that started prior to

         16  the completion of the procurement process, that is,

         17  the date on which the contract was registered by the

         18  Comptroller's Office.

         19                 This indicator will include data

         20  reflecting the level of contract retroactivity for

         21  all Mayoral operating agencies for all new and

         22  renewal contracts awarded during FY 2000.

         23                 The data presented will include total

         24  number of contracts awarded, total dollar value of

         25  contracts awarded, number and percent of total
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          2  contracts awarded which were retroactive, dollar

          3  value and percent of total dollar value of contracts

          4  awarded which were retroactive, and average number

          5  of days that elapsed between the contract start

          6  date, and the contract registration date.

          7                 With this indicator, we will be

          8  focusing high level agency attention on the problem

          9  of getting procurements completed on time.

         10                 My office is currently drafting new

         11  oversight review forms. These forms will reduce

         12  paperwork and focus our review on substantive

         13  problems, rather than on paper trails in ordinary

         14  cases.

         15                 My office plans to try a new approach

         16  to contract review. Many issues that raise questions

         17  about a procurement are issues such as performance

         18  problems or audit problems. Some procurements are

         19  delayed because of issues such as problems regarding

         20  the contractor's performance or fiscal integrity. If

         21  we can detect and resolve these issues throughout

         22  the year, we can avoid the last-minute delays that

         23  resolving these issues sometimes cause. Of course,

         24  to make this concept work, all participants in the

         25  process must embrace it.
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          2                 We believe that the threshold for

          3  when a public hearing must be held on a contract

          4  should be increased from $100,000 to $1 million.

          5                 For many contracts, this change would

          6  cut 30 or more days out of the procurement cycle.

          7                 Hearings should also be made easier

          8  to schedule by expanding the number and type of

          9  agency staff members who are allowed to conduct the

         10  hearings.

         11                 My staff has already reduced the

         12  impact that the public hearing process can have on

         13  procurement processing cycle times, by increasing

         14  the number of hearings scheduled.

         15                 I believe that this change will

         16  reduce the time that a proposed contract must wait

         17  for its public hearing.

         18                 The Council, however, should also act

         19  by making the hearing process simpler.

         20                 Many policy objectives, such as those

         21  behind the McBride Principles, the Burma Provisions

         22  and the bill to prevent religious persecution are

         23  pursued through the procurement process.

         24                 Each of these policy objectives

         25  brings with it its own paperwork and process
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          2  requirements, each has the effect of delaying all

          3  procurements to some extent, by requiring

          4  contractors to go through the sometimes lengthy

          5  process of determining compliance during the

          6  contract approval phase.

          7                 Alternative processes might presume

          8  compliance, and require the exceptional offending

          9  contractors to file documentation at an appropriate

         10  time. The Council should eliminate unnecessary

         11  certifications and avoid new ones.

         12                 We are rapidly moving towards the

         13  implementation of FMS 2000, which will move us a

         14  long way to automating and speeding up our

         15  procurement process.

         16                 As we move into the next century,

         17  access to on-line information is becoming more and

         18  more common.

         19                 As recent examples have shown, one

         20  advantage of on-line access to information is the

         21  ability to rapidly disseminate information to those

         22  who are interested in it.

         23                 If we can provide electronic notice

         24  to participants in the procurement process, we will

         25  be able to save many days consumed by the mail and
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          2  publication methods of notice that we now use.

          3                 The Council should amend the law to

          4  permit agencies to rely on electronic notice.

          5                 Sometimes required certifications,

          6  such as those related to the requirements of the

          7  Department of Business Services, Division of Labor

          8  Services and VENDEX, are not finished on time and

          9  hold up the processing of contracts.

         10                 The Council should amend the law to

         11  authorize the City Chief Procurement Officer to

         12  allow the processing of contracts to proceed while

         13  administrative certifications are being obtained

         14  under appropriate circumstances.

         15                 Currently, one of the fastest ways to

         16  procure goods or services is to utilize existing

         17  state contracts.

         18                 This use could be expanded if the

         19  Council amended the law to allow the City to take

         20  advantage of New York State contracts, even where

         21  the agency has no absolute proof that the state

         22  contract price is the lowest.

         23                 The Council should also expand our

         24  ability to use federal contracts by authorizing the

         25  City to buy goods or services at the federally
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          2  negotiated price.

          3                 This is obviously not a complete list

          4  of what needs to be done, but it is a start, and we

          5  look forward to the cooperation of all participants

          6  in the procurement process in our effort to reduce

          7  procurement process cycle times.

          8                 Thank you. I would be happy to take

          9  your questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Sort of working backwards, a couple

         13  of questions. Your last comments where you were

         14  talking about the Council -- oh, expand our ability

         15  to use federal contracts, because we already did

         16  pass a law that allowed us to do that, to use

         17  federal contracts --

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: We do have some --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, what kind of

         20  expanding would you be interested in?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: We can be more precise,

         22  but I think the answer should be that we should be

         23  allowed to use federal contracts whenever possible.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: See, I thought we

         25  were. That is where I am confused.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: I think there are some

          3  restrictions in law right now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. I certainly

          5  have no problem with looking into that.

          6                 On the electronic notice, we are

          7  talking about amending the law to permit agencies to

          8  do that? Can we do that at the City level, or since

          9  it affects the legal status or something, does it

         10  have to be at the state?

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: I am pretty sure that

         12  can be done at the City level. I think the state

         13  requires that there be notice, but I don't think it

         14  specifies where the notice has to be.

         15                 Right now our City law requires that

         16  it be in the City record.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: And the concept would be

         19  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We can certainly

         21  -- I mean, I am very much in favor of moving on

         22  with the idea of using electronic notices, but for

         23  some reason it occurs to me, particularly if you are

         24  talking about it being accepted at the state as far

         25  as evidence, I think we may have to have state
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          2  amendment to that.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: It is not a matter of

          4  evidence.

          5                 One would have to look at the general

          6  municipal law, but I believe the general municipal

          7  law says that you must publish notice, and then

          8  after that the City record says the way you publish

          9  notice is by putting it in the City record, and the

         10  concept would be we would put it on the Internet and

         11  that would be the sole form of notice under

         12  appropriate circumstances.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Again,

         14  I don't think we have a problem with that. I am just

         15  concerned about the potential legality as far as if

         16  there were a lawsuit, then my guess is you would

         17  have to conform with rules of evidence and I am not

         18  sure, if you need a change in that, if you wouldn't

         19  have to go through the state.

         20                 But, anyway, some of these are

         21  certainly interesting ideas. I do have a few

         22  questions for you.

         23                 In fact, I guess when we had our

         24  earlier hearing in November, you had also mentioned

         25  the Fund for the City of New York, and I had asked a
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          2  couple of questions at the time that maybe we can

          3  get answers to right now.

          4                 For instance, do you know how much

          5  money is available in the Fund?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: I believe it is about $8

          7  million. That is not necessarily at this moment. I

          8  think the total fund is $8 million, and then it is

          9  obviously always changing, depending on whether a

         10  loan has been made or repaid.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you know in

         12  Fiscal 1999 how many groups were afforded loans from

         13  the Fund?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: No, I don't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: How many applied,

         16  how many were rejected?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: I am told it is about 75

         18  or 80.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Seventy-five or 80

         20  which?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't have the precise

         22  number, it is in that range.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, no. I meant

         24  that applied or that were granted?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Approved.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Approved, okay.

          3                 Who actually manages the Fund?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: The Fund is managed by

          5  the Fund for the City of New York. The Deputy Mayor

          6  for Education and Human Services has direct

          7  oversight over it.

          8                 Our office makes recommendations to

          9  the Deputy Mayor regarding whether or not a loan

         10  should be extended.

         11                 Generally, the only factor that I

         12  recall looking at -- let me back up.

         13                 We think of the Fund as -- the

         14  purpose of the Fund is to tie contractors over from

         15  the point of approval to registration. We usually

         16  want to know that there is a good reason for

         17  extending the loan; i.e. a payroll is going to be

         18  missed, or some service is going to be cut off, that

         19  there is going to be an impact.

         20                 We usually try and limit the amount

         21  to about one-twelfth of the annual budget for the

         22  contract, and we usually want to look at whether or

         23  not it is possible to get the contract registered so

         24  fast that we won't need the fund.

         25                 So, when we are making changes or
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          2  disapproving of a request from the loan fund, it is

          3  on that basis. For example, someone may ask for

          4  $400,000, if 30 days of their budget would only be

          5  $100,000, we will cut the loan down to -- recommend

          6  that it be cut down to $100,000.

          7                 You have to remember also that these

          8  are contracts that the Administration has already

          9  approved, so we are not looking at them from a

         10  substantive point of view of, you know, should this

         11  contract be supported or should it -- I mean, we

         12  have already okayed the substantive contract, so it

         13  is never that kind of issue, it is always about do

         14  they really need this cash, because it is a limited

         15  fund we want to preserve it for the others.

         16                 If someone came in, for example, and

         17  asked for $7 million, and these kinds of things,

         18  actually we had one -- I think it was well over a

         19  million anyway, someone asked for a very large

         20  amount, and we are always worried about the impact

         21  it is going to have on the rest of the fund and what

         22  it will do to other contractors.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: How long has this

         24  fund actually been in existence?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Several years.
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          2                 Jeff Weinstein, who is the Deputy

          3  Director from my office is informing me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

          5                 Yes, because I have to say, until you

          6  mentioned this I think in November, I would think we

          7  were largely unaware of this. And my impression is

          8  that a lot of the not-for-profits are also unaware

          9  of it.

         10                 How do you actually notify providers

         11  that the Fund exists, or that they can apply for it?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't know that there

         13  is an official notification or anything like that.

         14  What usually happens, though, is when an agency

         15  finds out that there is going to be a payroll

         16  problem, and the Agency Chief Contracting Officers

         17  are pretty tied into those questions because very

         18  few contractors that have been waiting for their

         19  contract to be approved and are about to miss a

         20  payroll are quiet about that.

         21                 They usually call the agency and say,

         22  I have been providing services, I am about to miss a

         23  payroll, this is what is going to happen, and

         24  usually the ACCO will then give them an application

         25  to fill out for the Loan Fund and forward that to us
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          2  and we will make the appropriate recommendation and

          3  send it on to the Deputy Mayor.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And are these

          5  funds a one-shot deal? I mean, if you actually grant

          6  the 30-day loan and they continue to provide the

          7  service and there is still a problem, can they

          8  extend the loan?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Technically we could. We

         10  are real loathe to do that because of the fact that

         11  those funds are limited. But in theory, contracts

         12  are registered within 30 days of our approval so

         13  usually, and I should say our approval, the

         14  Administration's approval, because a lot of things

         15  that are getting loans are not -- they don't go

         16  through the Mayor's Office of Contracts. So, in

         17  theory, 30 days ought to be enough, so we try and

         18  avoid that wherever we possibly can.

         19                 There is one where we had to do it,

         20  and unfortunately the contract ended up being

         21  registered the next day, so we did avoid the problem

         22  and we did extend 60 days worth of cash.

         23                 But I think that is an extremely rare

         24  problem.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Are there any --
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          2  to get back to the question as to who actually gets

          3  the loans, are there any guidelines? Or is it

          4  everyone who is approved, that it looks like they

          5  won't get the money in 30 days, automatically gets

          6  the loan?

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: As I said, the

          8  guidelines, I don't think there are any written

          9  guidelines. Well, actually there are written

         10  guidelines about when the Fund can be used. In terms

         11  of when we approve it, we are basically triaging the

         12  fund, we are not making any substantive decisions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, what I am

         14  concerned about is, as I am sure you know last year

         15  there were some delays in the whole contracting

         16  process, that there were a number of not-for-profits

         17  that we were well aware of who basically said that

         18  they had not gotten paid, and a lot of these were

         19  the smaller providers, smaller day care centers and

         20  foster care, things like that, who maintained that

         21  they were essentially almost on the brink of

         22  bankruptcy, where the people continued to provide

         23  the services, and yet they were not getting paid. In

         24  fact, there was at least one instance where

         25  presumably someone had to hock her jewelry so that
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          2  she could continue to pay her rent.

          3                 So, that is why I am concerned about

          4  the idea of what kind of guidelines there are. Why

          5  wouldn't a not-for-profit like that automatically be

          6  granted it? And if there is room for discretion, so

          7  that, for instance, certain not-for-profits may be

          8  more equal than other not-for-profits where they may

          9  get it because they are in or out of favor as

         10  opposed to one that may not be? I mean, that is why

         11  I am concerned about guidelines.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And just how it is

         14  done, because we certainly hear these concerns and

         15  they were prevalent last year and they were actually

         16  prevalent I guess two years ago in a similar case

         17  where a number of smaller agencies just about when

         18  out of business, and in fact there was at least one

         19  not-for-profit I think that did go out of business

         20  this year. That is why I am wondering how the

         21  determinations are made?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, you have to split

         23  up the circumstances into many different classes.

         24  The one clear guideline that there is is that no one

         25  gets a loan unless the Administration has approved
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          2  the contract.

          3                 So, for example, some of the examples

          4  that you gave sounded, I think you had mentioned

          5  them before in the budget battle dispute context,

          6  obviously if the Administration was not agreeing to

          7  spend the money and the Administration had not

          8  approved the contract, then the contractor is not

          9  eligible for a loan.

         10                 So, you must take any issues

         11  involving the budget dispute out of the picture for

         12  that purpose.

         13                 The next group would be those, I

         14  think you mentioned two years ago, and I think that

         15  you are thinking of the incident where my

         16  predecessor held up the approval of foster care

         17  contracts for substantive reasons.

         18                 Once again, those contracts -- and

         19  when I say substantive, it was performance problems

         20  -- those contracts had not been approved by the

         21  Administration because they were awaiting her

         22  approval. She was insisting that there be corrective

         23  action plans put in place, and that they be short

         24  termed, a procedure which turned out to be

         25  incredibly successful.
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          2                 Obviously, once again, none of those

          3  were eligible for loans until their contracts were

          4  approved by the Administration.

          5                 Once they were approved, all of them

          6  were eligible for loans.

          7                 I cannot think of a single case where

          8  a contractor was refused at least, certainly under

          9  my tenure, where a contractor was refused a loan for

         10  any reason other than that they didn't actually have

         11  a need for a loan, or the amount that they were

         12  asking for was inappropriate, in which case we just

         13  cut it down, or the amount that they were asking for

         14  would basically cause us to lose so much money from

         15  the Loan Fund that many, many other contractors

         16  would be adversely impacted.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. But of

         18  course that goes back to my original question that

         19  if there is someone, a contractor, a provider that

         20  the Administration might have a problem with, then

         21  they can be held up, where a provider that the

         22  Administration doesn't have a problem with, they

         23  will automatically go ahead, and if there is a

         24  problem with the money, then they can get the money

         25  out of the loan fund.
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          2                 You can see there is a clear problem

          3  there, and certainly any poor not-for-profit that is

          4  stuck somewhere in between a budget battle between

          5  say the Council and the Administration, is going to

          6  be left out to dry.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, regardless of

          8  whether or not there is a Loan Fund, the problems

          9  that you are describing could arise.

         10                 However, I should say that in terms

         11  of making those kinds of decisions, I have no idea

         12  which contractors are -- and I am under oath -- I

         13  have no idea which contractors are favored and which

         14  ones are not.

         15                 I don't have a political background.

         16  I am a former prosecutor who has absolutely no

         17  political background whatsoever. That is not my job.

         18  And we don't make those kind of determinations --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Of course, you

         20  know I am going to ask you who makes those

         21  determinations.

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: In terms of which ones

         23  to move quickly and which ones not?

         24                 The answer would be that if the ACCO

         25  calls my office, and as frequently happens, and says
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          2  this contractor is about to miss a patrol --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is an

          4  ACCO?

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: I am sorry, the Agency

          6  Chief Contracting Officer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: If the Agency Chief

          9  Contracting Officer contacts my office and says I

         10  have been called by the contractor, they are about

         11  to miss a payroll and then we move as fast as we

         12  possibly can to process the paper, and usually I

         13  sign off on a request for expedited registration.

         14                 If the contractor is eligible for a

         15  loan, we will try and get them a loan. We try and do

         16  everything we can for the missed payrolls, because

         17  missed payrolls are not good for the City.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Unfortunately I

         19  can understand from your point of view how you are

         20  sort of set back from that, but that does nothing to

         21  relieve the problem, in fact it probably makes it

         22  worse for some of the not-for-profits who are stuck

         23  in the middle, and certainly, again, last summer,

         24  with the budget battles going on where legally we

         25  approved money for certain, to be used for certain
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          2  not-for-profits which they didn't get because they

          3  got caught in the middle of this and where so many

          4  of them were even afraid to come forward because

          5  they were afraid that if they did they would be

          6  penalized in one way or another, and unfortunately

          7  the scenario that you just laid out does everything

          8  to show that they were probably right in those

          9  considerations.

         10                 Because it was somewhat arbitrary as

         11  to who got what. Not from you maybe, but maybe from

         12  the actual agencies themselves, or maybe from the

         13  Administration itself.

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't understand, I am

         15  sorry.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right.

         17                 Anyway, let me ask one other quick

         18  question, and I know other people have questions.

         19                 You had mentioned several things

         20  about corrective action plans and model procurement

         21  documents, some of these again you have been

         22  mentioning, at least since the November meeting;

         23  where are we with those?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, those are two

         25  separate topics. Model procurement documents, the
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          2  answer is that we have drafted a model RFP, we gave

          3  a copy of the model to the Human Services Action

          4  Group, we had two meetings with the Human Services

          5  Action Group, a third one is scheduled I think

          6  within a week or so. And they were very productive

          7  discussions where we talked about every page of the

          8  document and also other problems associated with

          9  processing contracts in the Human Services area.

         10                 We have been revising the documents

         11  to reflect comments that we received from human

         12  service providers, and umbrella organizations, in

         13  our meetings, and we are going to continue doing

         14  that and hope certainly before the end of the fiscal

         15  year to have a model out to the contracting

         16  agencies.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. And of

         18  course, we would like a copy of those, as soon as

         19  possible.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: We have provided

         21  actually to the Committee a copy of the draft RFP,

         22  the model RFP, that we have been discussing with the

         23  Human Services Action Group, and I think we sent

         24  that by letter, and we would be glad to discuss that

         25  whenever it is convenient for the Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 Oh, and lest I forget, would we be

          4  able to get the list of the not-for-profits who

          5  actually were able to get loans and which ones were

          6  rejected?

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, we will certainly

          8  try and do that for you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         10                 I have other questions but I will --

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: I should say probably it

         12  may be better to go to the Deputy Mayor's Office

         13  with respect to that request. I am pretty sure that

         14  when you asked last time we suggested that would be

         15  more appropriate, since it is not -- all I do is

         16  make recommendations, that it would be more

         17  appropriate to make the request of the Deputy

         18  Mayor's Office.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, we will do

         20  that also.

         21                 Council Member Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thanks. I love

         23  learning new acronyms - ACCO.

         24                 I just wanted to say, you know, in

         25  your move to say that you are not political, by
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          2  saying that you were a former prosecutor isn't

          3  entirely helpful because that is what the Mayor

          4  could say and we would all say that he is pretty

          5  political.

          6                 The Fund for the City of New York

          7  loans, do they have an interest rate on them?

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: No, they are interest

          9  free.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: They are

         11  interest free, okay.

         12                 I have a number of questions. First,

         13  I want to say that I was the Executive Director of a

         14  Social Service Agency for a number of years that had

         15  contracts with the City and with the State, so I

         16  kind of know this problem. I mean, I think when we

         17  talk about the fund for the City of New York, it is

         18  important to note that, at least my experience was,

         19  that you would call your contract managers and they

         20  would say the check is coming, the check is coming,

         21  and I am in no way saying they were lying, they

         22  really believed the check was coming and then they

         23  would find out the check wasn't coming, and it often

         24  left you with not enough time to apply with the Fund

         25  of the City of New York, in which case you would
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          2  have to go for a line of credit that you had or to a

          3  major donor or to, you know, a cup on the street or

          4  whatever.

          5                 So we should just in that 75 to 80

          6  also know that there is other people who have had to

          7  seek relief, and if you have a line of credit as we

          8  did at the Anti-Violence Project, that does cost you

          9  money.

         10                 Also, I kind of get the sense when

         11  you are talking about the Fund of the City of New

         12  York loans, I got the sense that getting those was

         13  not -- you are kind of implying not impactful on an

         14  agency in the long term. But I guess what I wanted

         15  to say is often we should note that foundations,

         16  when you apply to them, will ask if you ever missed

         17  a payroll, they will ask if you ever had to take a

         18  loan, and that is held against you in the foundation

         19  application process.

         20                 So, we just need to recognize as we

         21  work to solve this, that there are, you know,

         22  spirals out of this.

         23                 It sounded like in your testimony,

         24  but I could be wrong, a lot of what you were talking

         25  about were contracts that were going through an
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          2  entire RFP process.

          3                 It seems to me some of the human

          4  service contracts we are talking about in this case

          5  are not ones that went through an RFP or were in

          6  fact ones that were granted monies through the City

          7  Council, but those monies are, as I understand it,

          8  still delayed.

          9                 And I was wondering if you could

         10  comment on what you believe the delay is there,

         11  since part of the process does not exist, since

         12  there isn't an RFP process for discretionary money

         13  or Speaker initiatives?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, the delay is

         15  inherent is the problem. The budget is typically not

         16  approved until the very end of the fiscal year, and

         17  as a result pretty much the contractors start

         18  providing services well before the agencies even

         19  know about the line item, or can start the process.

         20                 So, whenever you have a line item

         21  appropriation, it is basically going to be

         22  retroactive. That is assuming that there is no

         23  budget dispute.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         25                 And I will say my experience at the
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          2  Anti-Violence Project was with any member item we

          3  got from the City or the State, quite frankly, we

          4  never got that money in that fiscal year. If the

          5  money was allocated for the fiscal year we are in

          6  right now, in the best possible scenario, we might

          7  have gotten a check at the end of May or in June,

          8  but typically we got it the next year. So, I think

          9  you are right in that sense. But usually we were

         10  well on the way to signing papers, you know,

         11  notarizing, you know, yatta yatta yatta by this

         12  point.

         13                 What I am hearing from groups is that

         14  that hasn't even happened, which raises the concern

         15  that there is a delay built into the system

         16  unfortunately that we all recognize with these line

         17  items, but now it seems it could be even worse,

         18  because agencies are being told by their contract

         19  managers that they can't even begin the paperwork,

         20  which we all know is lengthy.

         21                 Do you know what that delay in moving

         22  the process forward is about?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I am not sure I fully

         24  understand that. Let me just see if I do.

         25                 What you are saying is that usually
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          2  the line items for, say, FY 2000, that in the past

          3  the paperwork was begun at this point in the year

          4  for the line items of FY 2000?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This is FY

          6  2000, right? No, no, no, that the paperwork for FY

          7  '99 -- that the allocation would have been granted

          8  for FY '99, but as an executive director I would

          9  recognize that I wasn't going to get that money in

         10  FY '99, just for my own bookkeeping in my head, but

         11  that during this period from July 1 until now, I

         12  would have been doing the paperwork with the

         13  agencies, which would assure that I would have

         14  gotten my FY '99 money in August, September, October

         15  and November of 1999, FY 2000.

         16                 But what I am hearing is that people

         17  are not -- have not been allowed to engage in the

         18  paperwork process from July 1,  FY '99 to now of FY

         19  '99, which creates the possibility that the FY '99

         20  money, if it comes, will be even later than October

         21  of FY 2000.

         22                 Do you know what I mean?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. As I am sure you

         24  are aware there was a budget dispute this year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I wasn't here.
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          2  It will be nicer this year, I am sure it will all be

          3  fine.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: May I just add one

          5  other thing, though?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Don't forget that

          8  there was a change in the requirements for contract

          9  renewals, there used to be a requirement that they

         10  would be notified between 120 and 90 days prior to

         11  the contract beginning that their contract was going

         12  to be renewed. And that was a change that I believe

         13  you, or maybe it was PPB initiated, that we, by the

         14  way, opposed because we thought that it went a long

         15  way to get the renewal contracts at least set up and

         16  ready to go so that they would be in a position so

         17  that they would know ahead of time if they were

         18  going to be renewed, or if it looked like they

         19  weren't going to be renewed, then they could go to

         20  look for other funding sources. Since that no longer

         21  exists, a lot of them got caught up in that as well,

         22  and that may be one of the things that Chris is

         23  referring to when she talks about getting the

         24  paperwork in ahead of time as well.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: No, those are definitely
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          2  two separate issues. I think the line item

          3  appropriations are never renewal contracts, so that

          4  rule would never have applied to a line item

          5  appropriation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, but what

          7  about the other contracts who year after year, who

          8  have to go back after like a year or two years to

          9  get renewals? There has been a big problem for

         10  those.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, if we are going to

         12  switch for a moment to the question of renewals for

         13  non-line item appropriations, situations where

         14  basically the City entered into say a six-year

         15  relationship with someone through, this is not

         16  Council money, this would be other than line item --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There is also

         18  Council money.

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, then that would be

         20  amended into it typically, so we are talking about

         21  the baseline contract.

         22                 Usually -- there used to be a PPB

         23  rule that said that if the agency intended to

         24  exercise that renewal option, that they would notify

         25  the contractor early on of that; however, what we
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          2  discovered was that that rule was actually slowing

          3  down the process, because even though you had to

          4  notify your intent to do it, it didn't really mean

          5  anything because there had to be ultimately an

          6  oversight approval, and most agencies right now send

          7  some sort of letter saying, you know, here is some

          8  documentation that you have to fill out, be aware

          9  that the renewal is subject to oversight approvals,

         10  et cetera, et cetera, which is the same thing.

         11                 So, basically it was just more

         12  paperwork, and this is a common problem in the

         13  procurement system, people think, oh, here is the

         14  way to solve the problem, we will put in a

         15  requirement that the procurement folks do something,

         16  and so that means they have to jump through more

         17  hoops.

         18                 If they decide not to renew the

         19  contract and then they change their mind, or if they

         20  decide yes we should renew the contract, which from

         21  the contractor's perspective may be a very good

         22  thing, suddenly now we have got a rule violation, it

         23  just didn't really help and it seemed to slow down

         24  the process, which is why the PPB saw fit to get rid

         25  of the requirement.
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          2                 I don't think -- I would be shocked

          3  to hear that there were no retroactive contracts

          4  during the period when we had that rule.

          5                 I am sorry, I sort of lost my place.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Why

          7  haven't groups been allowed to being their paperwork

          8  for their FY '99 line item allocations which will

          9  create an even greater delay than is typically built

         10  into the system? If only I could have said it that

         11  quickly to begin with.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: I have not heard of any

         13  directive to agencies not to begin their paperwork.

         14  If anything, all my conversations with agencies have

         15  been to the effect that they are currently working

         16  on their paperwork. They are, of course, delayed in

         17  comparison to where they would be, had the Council

         18  and the Mayor agreed on the budget right away. But

         19  other than there being a delay, they seemed all to

         20  be working very hard to get that done.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If some of the

         22  folks that have reached out to me, I could call you

         23  and we could work on that together, if there are

         24  people who have been misinformed, agencies?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Through Legislative
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          2  Affairs we could certainly get a list of any of the

          3  agencies and the --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, no. What I

          5  am saying is a couple of people have called me, so

          6  when I get back to my office I am going to pull that

          7  list out and I will call you and you will call their

          8  agencies and --

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I will try and find out

         10  what is going on.

         11                 I don't understand why that would be.

         12  Sometimes there are substantive disagreements about

         13  the contractor. In other words, the contractor is

         14  told by the Council this is what you are getting,

         15  and that means now that there has to be a contract

         16  negotiated and the agency and the contractor don't

         17  always agree with what should be the terms of that

         18  contract and they will hash that out and go back and

         19  forth and sometimes they then agree and it goes to

         20  the oversight and we don't agree. So sometimes

         21  working that out, but there is certainly no

         22  directive that I am aware of - don't work on line

         23  items, I haven't heard of that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Well, I

         25  will call your officer later.
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          2                 Just two other things. In page three

          3  where you talk about "detach substantive review from

          4  procurement process", and you say that many issues

          5  that raise questions about procurement are issues

          6  such as performance problems or audit problems. I

          7  just wanted to say that when I was at the

          8  Anti-Violence Project, we never had a particularly

          9  negative performance reading, nor did we ever fail

         10  an audit, though we still had delays in getting

         11  money. So, it isn't always that.

         12                 Also, I wanted to, I guess this isn't

         13  so much a question, it is more of a statement, in

         14  your testimony, also on page three you talk about

         15  the McBride Principles and the Burma Provisions, et

         16  cetera, and I think that I would just like to say

         17  that I don't think it is appropriate to raise those

         18  kind of civil rights matters or legislations in the

         19  context of streamlining the contracting process. I

         20  think there are many ways in your testimony and

         21  beyond that we can streamline the contracting

         22  process. But it would never, streamlining would

         23  never be good if we did it at the expense of the

         24  civil rights positions of the City, so I think we

         25  have many other things to do that would be more
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          2  effective and within the context of human rights in

          3  the City.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: If I could just respond?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Sure.

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: First of all, I am glad

          7  to hear that, and I am not surprised to hear that

          8  there are delays that happen outside the context of

          9  these audit-type issues, delays happen for probably

         10  thousands of reasons, and what we have attempted to

         11  do is go through the process and look for various

         12  ways in which delays happen and try and cut them

         13  out.

         14                 To move to your other point regarding

         15  the civil rights-type initiatives, you can pursue

         16  policy objectives through the procurement process

         17  without delaying procurements. But what you have to

         18  do is when you create those laws or when you are

         19  looking at those laws to consider amending them, ask

         20  yourself, can I achieve these objectives in some way

         21  that is not going to impose really stupid burdens on

         22  agencies that will still get my objective

         23  accomplished. They are not necessarily contrary to

         24  one another. But if, for example, you say the way I

         25  am going to pursue my policy objective is have,
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          2  every time there is any type of procurement someone

          3  has got to fill out a piece of paper, sign it, get

          4  the agency head to sign it, okay? Well, that may

          5  mean that, you know, knowing a bureaucracy, getting

          6  that piece of paper signed could take a week. Maybe

          7  if the document has to be signed by the contractor

          8  and the agency head, it takes a week to get the

          9  first document signed, another week to get -- you

         10  just have to ask yourself, is there another way to

         11  do this? And that is all we are talking about there.

         12  I am not suggesting that you should abandon your

         13  policy objectives, just understand the implications

         14  that the method that you use are going to have on

         15  the procurement process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. That

         17  was helpful, thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Perkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         21                 The proposed RFP that was sent down,

         22  I have a question or two on that. On page two -- are

         23  you familiar?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, I don't have it

         25  before me.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It doesn't

          3  matter. It's a little thing in a way, but I want to

          4  understand for sure.

          5                 It says proposals received, that is

          6  at this location, this is the proposal date, time

          7  and location part, on page two.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It says,

         10  proposals received at this location after the

         11  proposal due date and time are late; what does that

         12  mean, "late"? What are the consequences of being

         13  late?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, the PPB rules say

         15  that the RFP has to have a due date for proposals,

         16  and then after that, if you are late then the

         17  proposals can be accepted under certain

         18  circumstances defined by the rules.

         19                 Now, I should say, I don't

         20  particularly agree with the way the rules handle

         21  this, but I will describe how the rules approach it.

         22                 The rules say that if a proposal is

         23  up to three hours late, and during that three-hour

         24  period the Agency Chief Contracting Officer has not

         25  opened up the other proposals, then all proposals
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          2  that are received within that three-hour period can

          3  be at the discretion of the Agency Chief Contracting

          4  Officer, accepted even though they are three hours

          5  late or up to three hours late, and then all of them

          6  can be opened.

          7                 If you are three hours and one minute

          8  late, then that proposal cannot be accepted. That is

          9  how the rules are set up.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, that is

         11  sort of like a fatal defect.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: If you are three hours

         13  and one minute or more late, then you are out under

         14  the PPB rules.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are there

         16  other fatal defects that might relate to this

         17  proposal?

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, what we have done

         19  in this model RFP is we have attempted to eliminate

         20  as many fatal defects as we can from the system.

         21                 The system currently has many fatal

         22  defects and through probably inertia agencies tend

         23  to put those into their RFPs. Our office hates them

         24  because they, quite frankly, reduce competition

         25  because we have fewer options, and remove out of our
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          2  range of choices possibly very good proposals.

          3                 So, while we could not eliminate

          4  that, because it is a PPB rule and the Board members

          5  have been very, the issue has been reconsidered I

          6  guess a number of times and the Board has been very

          7  clear that they think there ought to be some due

          8  date, some final time, and they have decided the

          9  time, plus three hours, is it.

         10                 The other ones that trip up proposers

         11  frequently are, you will see on page 6, (B) minimum

         12  submission requirements, this is a common pitfall,

         13  and we do everything we can to prevent it from

         14  happening, but agencies tend to think of minimum

         15  submission requirements, will list off all of the

         16  things that we want, and then, for example, let me

         17  give you an example: Someone will say as a minimum

         18  submission requirement, you must give us your VENDEX

         19  form, and this is a contractor that we have done

         20  business with a thousand times --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I am glad you

         22  mentioned that.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: And then the contractor

         24  is told that they can't get a contract because they

         25  failed to send in an affidavit of no change. Well,
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          2  this is very dumb because we have their VENDEX, they

          3  are willing to give us the affidavit of no change,

          4  we have just eliminated our chance of doing business

          5  with an excellent contractor perhaps, and so what we

          6  have been saying to the agency is, get rid of your

          7  minimum submission requirements, and the model would

          8  have some guidance in it, and the guidance would say

          9  you should not have minimum submission requirements,

         10  and basically my plan is to say that you can't

         11  require, have a minimum submission requirement

         12  without our office's approval.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You say it is

         14  dumb to have certain type of minimum requirements,

         15  and particularly you mentioned the VENDEX. Now, for

         16  instance, I know there are quite a few youth

         17  organizations that are suffering the loss of their

         18  Summer Youth Employment contracts because of this

         19  VENDEX, and these are organizations that have been

         20  involved with SYEP for 100 years, or whenever the

         21  beginning of time was for these SYEP contracts, and

         22  suddenly they didn't get the contract because of

         23  this VENDEX problem.

         24                 Do agencies know that that is not an

         25  appropriate reason for disqualifying the group?
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, it is not correct

          3  to say it is not am appropriate reason for

          4  disqualifying a group.

          5                 If the agency puts in their RFP that

          6  VENDEX is a minimum submission requirement, and the

          7  minimum submission requirement is not complied with,

          8  then actually the agency has no choice other than to

          9  find them non-responsive. What I am saying is dumb

         10  is the first decision to put it into the RFP.

         11                 Now, we met with the agency and we

         12  tried to prevent them from putting that into the

         13  RFP. Their argument was, and there is some merit to

         14  this notion, that a problem that had persistently

         15  plagued the Summer Youth Employment Program was late

         16  contracts, and they wanted to get the program in

         17  place on time, and one way of doing that was to say,

         18  look, we need all of your paper, and we need it

         19  right away. And they thought that the entire program

         20  could benefit if they placed that minimum submission

         21  requirement. So we said to them, do you understand

         22  that by doing that you may deprive yourself of the

         23  service of some of these contractors? They

         24  understood that, and they went ahead with it. That

         25  was the agency's decision.
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          2                 There is some good news, however,

          3  which is that my understanding is that there is,

          4  that the agency has more funds that have not been,

          5  or is anticipating more funds that have not been

          6  allocated, and they may be going out with another

          7  solicitation regarding the Summer Youth Employment

          8  Program, and so, since each solicitation is

          9  considered on its own merits, some of those that

         10  failed the minimum submission requirements could

         11  respond to the new solicitation for this summer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But they

         13  would have to watch that dumb VENDEX again, or is

         14  that going to be taken out this time?

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: I actually think the

         16  agency has learned its lesson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, that is

         18  good to hear. So, there is no standardized approach

         19  to this. I mean, one agency can have it, another

         20  agency doesn't have to have it?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, what I would like

         22  to change to, and this is one of the theories behind

         23  the model, is to basically say you can't have a

         24  minimum submission requirement, unless you come to

         25  the Mayor's Office of Contracts, make your case and
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          2  we permit it. And we would really want to avoid

          3  doing it in any but the most compelling of

          4  circumstances.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, let me

          6  just be clear about something.

          7                 So, minimum submission requirements

          8  are the same as fatal defects?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Failure to comply with

         10  the minimum submission requirement is a fatal

         11  defect.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: See, because

         13  it would seem to me that groups would want to know

         14  what are considered fatal defects.

         15                 Do you understand what I am saying?

         16  It is sort of like when I send my taxes in hopefully

         17  before Thursday, there is a thing on the back of the

         18  envelope that says did you put on a stamp on, did

         19  you do -- do you understand? So that way I know it

         20  is a fatal defect if I didn't do one of those

         21  things, and I am just wondering, would that be

         22  helpful for organizations to know that these are

         23  fatal defects, that means you are dead in the water

         24  if you don't comply with this, as opposed to minimum

         25  requirements; is there a distinction there that is
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          2  worthwhile?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: Certainly you want to

          4  let the agencies know about the fatal defects, the

          5  contractors know about the fatal defects up front.

          6                 Better than that, avoid having fatal

          7  defects in your system. So, first get rid of them,

          8  get rid of the traps for the unwary, then if there

          9  are any traps that you have left, yes, you should

         10  notify them up front. And we have tried to do that

         11  by having page two contain the vital information,

         12  like the proposal due date and information like

         13  that. And our vision would be that you wouldn't

         14  really see, while there is a section in there about

         15  submission requirements, we don't want it filled in.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But there is

         17  a fatal defect in here that is not clear. There is

         18  one that I raised earlier concerning lateness. There

         19  is a three-hour one minute fatal defect thing. This

         20  is a trap.

         21                 Do you understand what I am saying?

         22  Maybe we just need somehow to clear this up, because

         23  what this says is, this doesn't say that it is too

         24  late, it only says that it is late, but it could be

         25  too late if it is three hours and a minute late. Or
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          2  if the ACCO has cleared up all of the other

          3  applications within that three-hour period and has

          4  decided, well, I finished all of my work, oh, this

          5  one came in at whatever and I don't have to -- do

          6  you understand what I am saying?

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes. It is a tough --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It is an

          9  ambiguity here.

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: It is a tough question,

         11  because we can't say that proposals that are

         12  received after the due date and time will not be

         13  accepted, because that is not consistent with the

         14  rules, right? We can't say that.

         15                 And we also don't want to say that

         16  here is the due date and time, but by the way, there

         17  is an extra three hours there that might be

         18  available, because then people might be lulled into

         19  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right. The

         21  only thing I know is this: If someone from my

         22  neighborhood falls into that three-hour trap and

         23  finds out that they have been disqualified because

         24  the ACCO finished reviewing the other applications,

         25  and then I call and find out if they are in that
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          2  three-hour period -- do you understand what I am

          3  trying to say? I would suggest that you fix this a

          4  little bit so that we could make it more

          5  understandable and workable for the groups, because

          6  I understand what you are trying to do, in terms of

          7  providing some flexibility, but I also see this as a

          8  potential trap that can get people into believing

          9  that there is an arbitrariness or political agenda

         10  as to why they were disqualified or why another

         11  group in the same three-hour trap was allowed to be

         12  considered qualified.

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: First of all, my goal is

         14  the same as yours, which is that I hate traps for

         15  the unwary, I hate it when the City loses a good

         16  contractor.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I hate them

         18  for the wary too.

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: And I hate it when the

         20  City loses a good contractor for some technical

         21  defect.

         22                 We have tried to make this as clear

         23  as we can. If you have a specific language change,

         24  which may be if you talk to your constituents who

         25  are contractors, maybe they have some suggestions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Sure.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: We would love to

          4  consider them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: But I will also bring up

          7  your comment to the Human Services Action Group to

          8  see whether they have some thoughts about it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I just wanted to

         11  add one quick thing, because as you know, a lot of

         12  this sounds a lot like petitioning, which most of us

         13  are very aware of, and one of the things that has

         14  changed in the petition process, which is something

         15  you might look at, that if there are certain fatal

         16  defects, that someone could just review the contract

         17  when it comes in and that they be given a week or

         18  something like that, and they be notified that

         19  certain specific things that they are supposed to

         20  provide were not provided and that if they can

         21  provide those within a week --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Within a

         23  reasonable period of time. That is a very good

         24  suggestion.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Within a
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          2  reasonable period of time --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What the

          4  Board of Elections does --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Exactly what we do

          6  in petitioning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What the

          8  Board of Elections does with regard to the

          9  petitioning process is, if there is a defect, what

         10  one might consider a fatal defect, they will contact

         11  the candidate and say, look, by the way, Perkins,

         12  you didn't put your name on the petition, you didn't

         13  sign the paperwork or whatever, within the next

         14  three days you should get down here and fix it.

         15                 So, in the case of this VENDEX, this

         16  dumb VENDEX minimum requirement problem, if a group

         17  forgot to submit that affidavit, then it would have

         18  been helpful for someone to say to the group, by the

         19  way, you got trapped by the dumb VENDEX problem, if

         20  you can get down here in three days, we can continue

         21  with this 100-year-old contract you have been doing

         22  great service with us for; do you understand what I

         23  am saying?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It is a
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          2  friendly approach. So, it doesn't have a trap notion

          3  to it, it has recognition of human error.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: I like that approach,

          5  and I should say that is what the rules actually

          6  have in them right now, it is just that the way

          7  sometimes that the agencies implement it, and here

          8  we changed that, is not that way.

          9                 So, for example, there is a rule

         10  right now that says that a minor informality can be

         11   -- in a proposal, can be overlooked an fixed by the

         12  contractor. We have that provision in the PPB rules.

         13                 So, for example, if you look at page

         14  six of the draft RFP, Section C, it describes the

         15  proposal package contents, and it has lots of

         16  things, the proposal cover letter, the program

         17  proposal, the acknowledgment of addenda, et cetera,

         18  et cetera, et cetera. All of those things, if you

         19  make any minor error on any one of those things, you

         20  are not out. The only time you are out is if one of

         21  those things is taken from there and put in Section

         22  B, the minimum submission requirement. And once the

         23  agency does that, what the agency is saying is, if

         24  you make a mistake on this one, then it is so

         25  important to us that you are out, and in my view it
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          2  has got to be pretty important before it rises to

          3  that level, and that is why an agency should not use

          4  minimum submission requirements, they should instead

          5  rely on the sensible rules that say that if there

          6  are any minor problems and the rules specifically

          7  give, for example, as an example, acknowledgment of

          8  addenda. This is a document that just says, yes, I

          9  got all the addenda, and, you know, I am going to

         10  comply with them.

         11                 Sometimes agencies actually put that,

         12  which is used as an example of a formality, and put

         13  it into the minimum submission requirements, and

         14  thereby they are saying we are going to deviate from

         15  the rules here and say that this acknowledgment of

         16  addenda is so important that if anyone doesn't fill

         17  it out we are going to knock them out.

         18                 That is not a good practice, and as I

         19  said, our approach is to follow the rules approach,

         20  and to tell agencies no, you can't do minimum

         21  submission requirements.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me

         23  acknowledge what I sense is a positive attitude and

         24  approach that you appear to be moving towards, and

         25  encourage you in that vain, you know, in terms of
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          2  being more user-friendly, in terms of being more

          3  advocate-like as far as wanting people to succeed,

          4  you know, eliminating traps, you understand?

          5  Creating a sense that if there is something that we

          6  can do to help you get through this process, that is

          7  what we are here for, as opposed to the belief that

          8  well, you know, this is a trick to see if I can, you

          9  know, make it or not. And I want to express what

         10  appears to be your sensitivity to that.

         11                 And in that regard, I notice that you

         12  are working with a group of advocates or providers

         13  that are helping you to overcome some of these

         14  problems and come up with some good ideas, and I am

         15  wondering if you have a listing of the groups that

         16  you are working with that you can provide us?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Sure, we can get you --

         18  actually I don't know that I have them, but we can

         19  get from Darwin Davis, who is the head of the Human

         20  Services Council, I think he would probably have a

         21  list of the people who belong to the Human Services

         22  Action Group.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: But we actually also

         25  meet some of the same people who are involved. I
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          2  have been attending the Procurement Policy Board's

          3  Advisory Group and that has been very helpful as

          4  well, and we found feedback from the vendors to be

          5  very helpful.

          6                 Though I should say, to be blunt

          7  about it I guess, we don't really approach it

          8  because we want to be nice to vendors or helpful to

          9  vendors, that is not really our motivation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But don't say

         11  that. You don't have to clarify that and make it

         12  sound as if you are doing just -- you understand?

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: We have the same

         14  interest.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Which is to

         16  get them through the process.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, our self interest

         18  is, we would like to have outstanding vendors supply

         19  services to the City of New York.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, I take my

         21  compliment back. I am not generous with my

         22  compliments with this Administration, and you should

         23  take it while you can.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: I just didn't want to be

         25  dishonest by not warning you that really our motive
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          2  is that we don't want to lose good vendors --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: -- Through

          5  technicalities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, that's

          7  a step in the right direction.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         11                 Since the Comptroller's Office is

         12  going to be testifying next, I think I would be

         13  remiss if I didn't bring up -- well, you know, that

         14  I was recipient of several letters back and forth

         15  from the Comptroller's Office and from your office

         16  regarding some comments that were made at our

         17  hearing on November the 18th.

         18                 So, let me just give you a chance to

         19  respond without going into what the controversy came

         20  up over, except that there was -- obviously the

         21  Comptroller's Office felt there was an implication

         22  that somehow some of the delays were their problems.

         23                 So, in the letter they wrote me they

         24  gave me several, they quoted several statistics,

         25  including, and I will just read them to you:
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          2                 We found that of the 1,197 contracts

          3  registered, and this is Fiscal Year I believe -- new

          4  and renewal contracts registered since January 1st,

          5  1998, and for the Departments of Homeless Services,

          6  Mental Health, Aging, Youth and Community

          7  Development, Administration for Children Services,

          8  and Human Resources Administration. They found that

          9  out of 1,197 contracts registered, 64 percent, or

         10  772 contracts, totalling almost a billion dollars,

         11  were submitted for registration after the contracts

         12  began.

         13                 186 of the 772 contracts were

         14  submitted to their office three months or longer

         15  after the term of the contract began, on an average

         16  the contracts were submitted 74 calendar days late.

         17                 So, why don't I just give you a

         18  chance to comment on that?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, I responded to

         20  that letter in writing. But I guess probably the

         21  most useful thing for me to say is that we have,

         22  since those two letters were sent, our office sat

         23  down with the Comptroller and discussed the nature

         24  of our working relationship and we agreed that our

         25  office would go back and we have been drafting a
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          2  protocol to improve our relationship and I think

          3  that we both have the same goal, which is that we

          4  would like to see, we would like to see delays

          5  eliminated and that we would like to see the City

          6  engage outstanding contractors and we are both I

          7  think committed to eliminating delays where we can

          8  find them and our meeting was very productive and I

          9  am hopeful that some positive changes on all sides

         10  are going to come from it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, I know in

         12  your letter you quoted bureaucratic minutia, and I

         13  was curious to know what you meant by that? In the

         14  registration process.

         15                 The Comptroller really is committed

         16  to, has to be committed to 30-day registration

         17  process, and I know you raised some questions about

         18  that, but what is the time limit on your office?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: There is no time limit

         20  on our office, nor actually I guess could there be.

         21                 Our role is very different from the

         22  Comptroller's Office, and first I should say that

         23  the vast majority of contracts don't go through our

         24  office, only I guess about 20 percent of City

         25  contracts go through our office.
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          2                 Our function is not the same as the

          3  Comptroller's. Our function is to approve -- well,

          4  first to make sure that all procedural requirements

          5  have been met. So, every single thing that happened

          6  in the process we need to check up on.

          7                 In addition, we have approval

          8  authority over the contract actions, in a more

          9  substantive sense. Once we sign off on a certificate

         10  of procedural requisites, the Comptroller's Office

         11  looks at that piece of paper, and if the signature

         12  is there, then that is the end from their

         13  perspective on the procedure.

         14                 So, their time limit I think is more

         15  appropriate than our more open ended approach.

         16                 However, in fact, our review process

         17  takes less than 30 days, and I don't think that in

         18  most cases that our office is the main problem,

         19  although it is certainly a problem, and I think

         20  every element of the procurement process needs to be

         21  looked at, and we need to shorten every single time

         22  period.

         23                 I have described some of the ways

         24  that we are trying to do that, including our

         25  creation of new renew forms, and our decision to
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          2  move towards a review approach that is not

          3  necessarily attached to procurements but rather a

          4  process where we would be constantly looking at

          5  contractors and seeing whether everything is working

          6  well, and this way when the procurement actually

          7  reaches our office, we are not doing a review at

          8  that time. And we have to some extent already been

          9  doing that, but we need to move to that in a more

         10  extensive way.

         11                 I think that those are the kinds of

         12  thing one can do to reduce the review process time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I also have to

         14  ask, because at least some of the providers, and I

         15  would say certainly Housing Works is one of the

         16  ones, and I know without going into the problems the

         17  Administration has with them and the fact that there

         18  is a court -- you are in court or not in court, or

         19  there is a decision, and I don't know if there is

         20  another appeal going on to the appeal or not, but

         21  one of the things that they raised, and some of the

         22  not-for-profits seem to agree with, was they were

         23  saying that MOC is now requiring that many human

         24  service providers who are seeking both contract

         25  renewals or extensions, you are now asking certain
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          2  of these not-for-profits to provide massive amounts

          3  of new information about their operations and

          4  finances, including personal financial information

          5  on Board members, City tax and income information,

          6  and is that across the board? Is it only certain

          7  groups? Is it based on anything in particular?

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: We try on human service

          9  contracts where we have not done a recent review, we

         10  try and check databases to see whether the

         11  contractors' executive staff, for example, pay

         12  taxes, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera. And what I

         13  am saying is that in the past historically we tried

         14  to do that during our review period.

         15                 This year we got it started much

         16  before our review period and what I would like to do

         17  is shift to an approach where we wouldn't be doing

         18  it tied to a review period at all, it would just be

         19  doing a constant check on contractors, seeing

         20  whether or not their performance is good, whether

         21  they have audit problems, whether there are tax

         22  problems, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera, and this

         23  way we wouldn't -- and we try and resolve those

         24  problems throughout the year. So, this way you

         25  wouldn't get to May and suddenly discover a problem
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          2  and then say that the contractor resolved the

          3  problem.

          4                 I think that this year-round approach

          5  should be used by all participants in the

          6  procurement process, and if we can all move to that

          7  kind of approach, then we can avoid the bottleneck

          8  that we get at the end of the fiscal year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, essentially

         10  you are saying you are going to be doing this for

         11  all of the Human Service providers?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Where we haven't done a

         13  recent review.

         14                 For instance, this year --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, I mean if

         16  you have done a recent review, this is part of the

         17  review, correct?

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

         19                 I guess, for example, this year we

         20  weren't looking at contractors where the review was

         21  done, I think a year, within a year or so. We could

         22  have done it on last year's review and you would

         23  think we might do it again, but we decided just in

         24  terms of workload we couldn't handle it, so we are

         25  doing it periodically.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because obviously

          3  housing works believes that they were singled out,

          4  and that those providers who may not be entirely

          5  complimentary to the Administration are the ones who

          6  were being singled out to have these additional

          7  information looked at.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, as I testified

          9  before, Housing Works got a lot of things wrong. In

         10  fact, if one believed everything they said, my

         11  insurance premiums would be much lower.

         12                 But in any event, I think that what

         13  happened there was that, first of all, I don't think

         14  they were saying that they were being singled out

         15  for these reviews, because none of their

         16  procurements were being reviewed or subject to

         17  delay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, they were

         19  saying many human service providers, and obviously

         20  they were saying that, implying or outright saying

         21  that the reason some of these human service

         22  providers were being selected to be looked at more

         23  closely was because they were either not on the

         24  Mayor's favorable list or they had been critical of

         25  the Administration.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: We try and review all of

          3  the contracts at least above a certain dollar value.

          4  That are on the human service side.

          5                 What I think happened, and I

          6  explained before in the Housing Works situation, is,

          7  as I have said, it takes a very long time for the

          8  procurement process to be completed. There, that was

          9  an example not of renewals that Housing Works, that

         10  the contractors that they were talking about, which

         11  was the scattered site housing --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         13                 MR. MILLMAN:  Was not the subject of

         14  renewals. That was a, I believe, a new RFP, and

         15  Housing Works, the process got started on time, in

         16  terms of getting it done within reason, but then

         17  when Housing Works sued, we were enjoined from

         18  moving forward.

         19                 So, when contractors who were calling

         20  and saying I don't understand, I need my money, what

         21  is going on, and the agency said, well, we have had

         22  some problems, we were sued, we were enjoined, we

         23  are trying to get the process done, I suspect that

         24  what happened was, the answer was on Housing Works'

         25  part, blame it on the Mayor's Office of Contracts,
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          2  which they did in that article; whereas, in fact, I

          3  think probably it would have been best for the judge

          4  to consider the impact of enjoining a procurement

          5  process before the judge did that. It had some

          6  adverse affects, and frequently court interventions

          7  do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, and I take

          9  it then your response is, as I said before, that all

         10  of the Human Service providers sooner or later will

         11  go through the same kind of scrutiny.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: At a reasonable dollar

         13  value, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Can you give us a

         15  breakdown of the contracts, like how many of them,

         16  what the delays were for? How many of the delays

         17  might have been contributed to the Law Department

         18  and the Mayor's authorization time, or if they

         19  didn't have some of the bureaucratic minutia or

         20  things like that? Can we get a breakdown of the

         21  contracts?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: I think every contract

         23  or every procurement action is a different

         24  situation, and I think there are delays in every

         25  single aspect of the procurement process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. But I guess

          3  what I am asking, since I think you, and we had

          4  asked before, if you are tracking it, can we get

          5  some kind of a breakdown?

          6                 I mean, I would assume you look at it

          7  just so you can pinpoint where the delays come so

          8  that you can find ways to alleviate those delays?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't know that I

         10  would quite know how to do that analysis.

         11                 As I said, I think the biggest

         12  problem is that every procurement -- I mean, it is

         13  sort of, think of like it as it is like an obstacle

         14  course, if you will, that is what the procurement

         15  process ultimately is. You have to go through just

         16  obstacle after obstacle after obstacle, and every

         17  part of the way you can get tripped up. The only way

         18  that you can try and make the race go faster is if

         19  you eliminate some of the obstacles or try and

         20  streamline it, make it a straighter run, and that is

         21  why the biggest thing that we are pushing today is a

         22  change in the small purchase limits, because if you

         23  can move that to $100,000, then for example, at

         24  Department of Youth and Community Development, there

         25  you will, the race will be very short and fast
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          2  because everything they do will be a small purchase,

          3  you won't have any problems.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, I notice that

          5  you are talking about even expanding that. I think

          6  what did concern me is you seem to be talking about

          7  only having public hearings on contracts that are

          8  over a million dollars. And our concern has always

          9  been, well, while we want to streamline the process,

         10  on the other hand, we don't want to do away with

         11  public input.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, those are two

         13  separate proposals. Right now, I mean I am proposing

         14  moving the small purchase level to $100,000, which

         15  is the level for public hearing.

         16                 So, the concept would be, if you

         17  don't need any public input on it, you should also

         18  make the process very fast and simple.

         19                 And if you did that, then you

         20  wouldn't have delays, at least in that one agency,

         21  and all that money would be dispersed very quickly

         22  and efficiently.

         23                 So, this year, if any of those

         24  contractors complain to you that there were delays,

         25  you might want to consider a response, yes, and we
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          2  are going to consider moving the small purchase

          3  limit to $100,000 to help you, and you should

          4  mention that when they call and complain about the

          5  delay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you have any

          7  idea about how many actually fall under the

          8  $100,000?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Virtually all of DYCD's

         10  contracts would fall under $100,000. I think the big

         11  exception would be the Beacon schools. Basically

         12  everything else I think is under $100,000.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, one last

         14  question, and then we will bring up the

         15  Comptroller's Office.

         16                 One of the reasons we were holding

         17  this, obviously we have been talking about some of

         18  these problems, to see if there are ways to

         19  streamline everything, and actually I think it has

         20  probably been good that we have had these hearings,

         21  because as you have said, you are talking with the

         22  Comptroller's Office and you are working and trying

         23  out ways to resolve some of the problems and do away

         24  with some of the delays, but we also were aware of a

         25  forum that City Project held, and they had done a
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          2  survey trying to examine the impact of delays, in

          3  some cases refusals on Human Service contracts,

          4  those that were authorized by the City Council's

          5  adopted budget in Fiscal '99, they surveyed some 200

          6  groups, they got responses from some 200 groups, in

          7  seven areas, Youth, Arts and Cultures, Seniors,

          8  Legal Aid, Community, Economic Development, Crime

          9  Prevention and Health, and let me just give you some

         10  of the statistics that they had at the time.

         11                 It said 62 percent of the 55 groups

         12  surveyed reduced staff and/or programs. Twenty-four

         13  percent of the groups had to delay program

         14  implementation or development. Twenty-five percent

         15  had to take out a loan or take time to develop new

         16  funds, and only six groups felt that they had no

         17  impact thus far and one program had to be cancelled

         18  in its entirety.

         19                 Do you have a comment?

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes. I don't think that

         21  that study is very helpful. Actually I think that

         22  the Comptroller's statistic regarding retroactivity

         23  is more useful.

         24                 With respect to the City Project

         25  report, basically what it concerns is the budget
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          2  dispute this year, and that there were delays in

          3  contracting because of the budget dispute and the

          4  line item appropriations.

          5                 I think also, the statistics there

          6  are also adversely affected by litigation to some

          7  extent. Also, the cultural, including cultural

          8  grants is not very useful, because they are not

          9  procurements, and really not within the scope of I

         10  think what we have been discussing.

         11                 And I think you can see how the

         12  analysis is flawed when they have that quote about

         13  ten to 11 months retroactivity, which is not

         14  consistent with the Comptroller's Office statistic,

         15  and the reason for that is because basically what

         16  they are talking about is the line item

         17  appropriations that were adversely affected by the

         18  budget dispute.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Of course, you

         20  know, I have to say, politics should not be getting

         21  into the running of the City. These are services

         22  that obviously the constituents out there need, and

         23  it is unfortunate that politics gets in the middle

         24  of it.

         25                 I mean, either there is a contract
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          2  and the services have to be provided or there isn't.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, there was no

          4  contract. But the point is --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And the services

          6  weren't being provided.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: The problem is that it

          8  is not a matter -- you have asked me to talk about

          9  procurement, which is really all I can talk about. I

         10  can't talk about the budget or the politics behind

         11  the budget. But what I can say is that, apart from

         12  what the City Project is talking about, which is not

         13  problems in the procurement system, there are

         14  problems in the procurement system which do

         15  adversely affect our contracting and on some very

         16  rare occasions actually impact payrolls.

         17                 And we can do some things about it.

         18  We can see there is a problem when you look at the

         19  Comptroller's Office statics regarding

         20  retroactivity, which is the same, I think we would

         21  agree with that statistic and say, yes, you have got

         22  to do something about that, and we are doing some

         23  things about it by publishing those statistics in

         24  the MMR, and urging the Council to take some swift

         25  action on removing the clogged bottleneck by raising
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          2  the small purchase limits to $100,000 across the

          3  board, because we think that that action alone will

          4  dramatically benefit many, many contractors.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I have to say,

          6  though, the City Project says that the Human Service

          7  contracts, although a lot of them have been

          8  provided, they still find that the delays in the

          9  contracting approval process are running between ten

         10  and 11 months.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: And what I am saying is

         12  that that statistic does not mesh with the

         13  Comptroller's Office statistic, which estimated

         14  retroactivity I think at about two months. So,

         15  something is wrong. Something is not consistent.

         16  And the answer is that they are looking at line item

         17  appropriations that were affected by the budget

         18  dispute, and the Comptroller's Office --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: That dispute could

         20  affect any one particular contract or we could go

         21  through it all over again at any given time.

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, obviously if there

         23  is a disagreement on whether to pursue a contracting

         24  process with respect to money, then there is going

         25  to be a problem and you are not going to -- the
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          2  procurement process can't start until everyone

          3  agrees to spend the money. So, that issue, though,

          4  is not a procurement process problem. There is a

          5  problem in the procurement process and we have

          6  stressed that it can be solved in many respects and

          7  I would urge for the Council act to try and solve

          8  the problem in the ways that it can, which include

          9  the small purchase limit and the other methods I

         10  mentioned.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, I think

         12  Council Member Quinn has one last question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: One last

         14  question.

         15                 The Anti-Violence Project where I

         16  used to work, when I was there we moved from Hudson

         17  and Ganesvoort to 35th, between Seventh and Eighth.

         18  A Citywide agency, AVP, so really our move had no

         19  effect -- actually, it probably benefitted our

         20  Citywide nature because we were near more subways.

         21                 Now the Anti-Violence Project has

         22  been told that they have to fill out a fair share

         23  agreement, which I guess as it has been described to

         24  them is some kind of modified ULURP, which I don't

         25  completely understand, giving a tremendous amount of
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          2  information they have never had to give before,

          3  which will of course delay the process, they have

          4  been told that the request for the completion of

          5  this fair share document is because they moved the

          6  office a mile.

          7                 I just wondered if you can comment,

          8  either (a) on their particular situation, or (b) on

          9  the nature of these fair share information requests,

         10  or on the impact that a move of an office has on a

         11  Citywide agency and its ability to contract with the

         12  City.

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: I am not an expert on

         14  the fair share law. But I think it is an example of

         15  a situation where you have perhaps good intention

         16  policy objectives pursued through the procurement

         17  process or in part through the procurement process,

         18  and where the system gets clogged up with lots and

         19  lots and lots of paper because we are trying to do

         20  something else.

         21                 And I know, for example, something

         22  that we are trying to eliminate, our office has

         23  typically required that a fair share checklist be

         24  filled out for every procurement we review, and the

         25  new model forms that we are requiring will basically
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          2  dump that back on the agency.

          3                 So we are trying to stay out of that

          4  as much as we can, but then the agency still has to

          5  deal with it in some way, and probably the best

          6  thing --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When you say

          8  the agency, you mean the City agency or the

          9  non-profit agency?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: The City agency. I use

         11  the term "contractor" for the non-profit agency to

         12  avoid the confusion, though I know that some

         13  contractors refer to themselves as agencies.

         14                 I think that the best thing to do is

         15  to try and avoid laws like this that complicate the

         16  process so that we can just get the money going and

         17  try and figure out if there are ways that we can

         18  pursue our policy objectives without lots of paper

         19  and certifications and hearings, et   cetera, et

         20  cetera, et cetera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you have any

         22  thoughts -- I mean, I think those are good longer

         23  term thoughts, do you have any thoughts or

         24  experiences with other contractors about a

         25  short-term solution or a short-term dialogue we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  could engage in to help with this particular -- with

          3  people who are having this problem right now? I am

          4  sure it is other people beyond this one agency.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, there are two

          6  separate issues: There is the paperwork, and the

          7  paperwork always clogs it up. There is probably,

          8  other than trying to avoid it where you can, there

          9  is nothing we can do.

         10                 The substantive question in terms of

         11  whether or not fair share has to be complied with,

         12  or whether fair share is implicated by a move of an

         13  office, I think the best thing to do is what we do

         14  in those situations, and I assume maybe even the

         15  agency did it, which is when you have got a fair

         16  share question and you are not sure about it, send

         17  it to the Law Department and ask them to tell you,

         18  you know, is this implicated by fair share or not.

         19                 But, you know, it is an example of, I

         20  am sure that the people who -- or I imagine that the

         21  people who thought of the fair share law did not

         22  intend to adversely affect the situation that you

         23  are describing, but nonetheless, it is the law of

         24  unintended consequences, you try and do something,

         25  and if you are not careful to make it, you make the
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          2  approach very narrow, and focus on your policy

          3  objective, as opposed to all sorts of bureaucratic

          4  things that are going to take place when you

          5  implement your grand scheme, then you will have

          6  problems like this. And the best way to do it would

          7  be to say, you know, you could for instance say if

          8  someone thinks they are adversely affected by an

          9  action, then they can sue or something like that.

         10  And this way you wouldn't have to go through the

         11  process every time no one cared about it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I will check

         13  with the agency on whether they went to the Law

         14  Department, and if not, we will go there.

         15                 Thank you for that suggestion that

         16  you can get a ruling or so-to-speak at the Law

         17  Department.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, or at least an

         19  opinion.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Next we will hear

          4  from the Comptroller's Office.

          5                 John Graham and Steve Newman.

          6                 Okay, welcome, gentlemen. And as you

          7  probably know, I always swear everyone in. So, if

          8  you would raise your right hands, please.

          9                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

         10  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. GRAHAM: Correct.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. Okay,

         14  and how ever you are going to proceed, and just

         15  identify yourself for the record.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         17  Sure. Good afternoon.

         18                 My name is Steve Newman, and I am the

         19  First Deputy Comptroller. This is John Graham, who

         20  directs our Office of Contract Administration.

         21                 Comptroller Hevesi regrettably could

         22  not be here today, and so he asked us to present the

         23  testimony on his behalf.

         24                 Our primary objective today is to

         25  help you understand some of the reasons human

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  service contracts are delayed and to offer

          3  substantive recommendations on how the Comptroller's

          4  Office believes the process can be improved.

          5                 We previously provided to the City

          6  Council the number and cumulative dollar amount of

          7  new contracts that were submitted late to the

          8  Comptroller's Office, as of December 29, 1998. You

          9  actually used them, as did MOC, during the

         10  discussion. They are slightly different because we

         11  have now updated them through the end of the

         12  calendar year when at that time they weren't, but in

         13  thrust they were, as the dialogue was before, so I

         14  will skip past that to save another 30 seconds.

         15                 Many factors can and do delay the

         16  contracting process. It is important that we

         17  research these delays to determine where the real

         18  bottlenecks exist, and move quickly to eliminate

         19  them.

         20                 I want to make it clear that it is

         21  not our intent to lay the blame for delays on the

         22  agencies or the Mayor's Office, it is our intent to

         23  make you aware of the factors involved in the

         24  process.

         25                 For example, often it is assumed that
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          2  the procurement process is the culprit for the

          3  contract delays. I, for one, clearly believe that.

          4  However, our research of the late contracts in 1998

          5  found that 23 percent of the late contracts were

          6  exempt from the Procurement Policy Board rules.

          7                 An additional 54 percent of the late

          8  contracts were discretionary non-bid renewals of

          9  existing contracts. Consequently, in 77 percent of

         10  the late 1998 contracts amounting to $852 million,

         11  we have to look to reasons other than the

         12  procurement process for an answer as to why they

         13  were submitted for registration after they had

         14  already begun.

         15                 In addition, many of the agencies

         16  assert that they are understaffed and that internal

         17  procedures and multiple approvals are time

         18  consuming. Bottlenecks must be identified and

         19  changes must be made before this process can run

         20  more smoothly for human service providers.

         21                 These contract delays place an extra

         22  burden on all of us. While we pride ourselves on our

         23  ability to review and process contracts quickly and

         24  efficiently, they first must be submitted to our

         25  office.
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          2                 When a contract from an agency comes

          3  in late, we know that people have already waited too

          4  long for their money.

          5                 Consequently we put aside contracts

          6  we are currently working on to get these late

          7  contracts reviewed as soon as possible which in turn

          8  negatively impacts the contracts that we are

          9  awaiting registration.

         10                 There are several recommendations the

         11  Comptroller's Office would like to make to help make

         12  the process more effective and efficient.

         13                 Presently the Comptroller's Office is

         14  in the process of working with the Board of Ed to

         15  allow direct access to its contracts from the OASAS

         16  database. We already do that in the claims area with

         17  the Board of Ed on Board of Ed claims and we are

         18  expanding that to the contract area.

         19                 This will tremendously improve the

         20  Board's processing of contracts and will position it

         21  for the future as we look more and more to

         22  technology to help us manage contracts.

         23                 The Comptroller's Office will work to

         24  make OASAS available to Human Service agencies.

         25  Agencies with access to OASAS will be able to
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          2  retrieve and read any one of its contracts or

          3  amendments within 45 seconds.

          4                 For a very small investment agencies

          5  will also be able to use OASAS locally to store

          6  contract file information such as performance

          7  reports and associated correspondence.

          8                 However, it may take some time to

          9  implement this proposal due to budget and technical

         10  issues that first must be resolved.

         11                 Two, in the near future we will begin

         12  sending monthly reports to agencies, defining the

         13  problems with their contracts, which resulted in

         14  delayed registration.

         15                 Three, also in the near future we

         16  will send to agencies and the Mayor's Office of

         17  Contracts a monthly printout of contracts that were

         18  received by the Comptroller after the date the

         19  contract began.

         20                 There are several things City

         21  agencies can do. One, agencies must be honest with

         22  their vendors. A persistent complaint that we hear

         23  from the Human Service community is they are not

         24  given accurate information about their contracts,

         25  and in fact, I will add an aside to that, frequently
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          2  we hear from Human Service contractors trying to

          3  find out what is happening with their contracts, and

          4  sometimes we hear from Human Service contractors

          5  that their contracts are with us, when they in fact

          6  are not, and sometime emphatically hear from you of

          7  how contracts within your districts are with us,

          8  when, in fact, they turn out not to be.

          9                 Two, while it is true that the

         10  procurement process is time consuming, many of the

         11  delays that vendors complain about occur after the

         12  award or otherwise are not related to the

         13  procurement process.

         14                 Agencies should identify those

         15  roadblocks, especially ones related to unnecessary

         16  approvals or reviews and eliminate them.

         17                 In addition, we believe it would be

         18  very valuable if the Mayor's Office of Contracts

         19  invited both the Comptroller's Office and the City

         20  Council to its offices for a walk-through of its

         21  processes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, we have

         23  asked.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:  We

         25  have recently -- what?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I think we have

          3  asked.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

          5  Okay.

          6                 We have recently provided such a

          7  walk-through of our office to MOC. In the past we

          8  have conducted a number of walk-throughs of our

          9  OASAS system and the registration process to your

         10  Committee, and we would be happy to do so again.

         11                 The Comptroller's Office knows the

         12  functions of the Human Service agencies are vital.

         13  We are committed to working with agencies, the

         14  Mayor's Office and the City Council, in finding the

         15  most constructive ways of improving the way these

         16  contracts are processed.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 I just would like to -- I would be

         19  happy in answering questions, to comment, if you

         20  would like, on any of the Mayor's Office proposals,

         21  but there is one that I want to comment on, and I am

         22  sure that my boss would want me to comment on up

         23  front, which is the recommendation that Human Rights

         24  issues, like the McBride Principles, be removed from

         25  the contracting process. As an original author of
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          2  the McBride Principles, I am personally appalled at

          3  the suggestion, and I could recount, if you would

          4  want, a number of instances where at the contract

          5  registration process point a number of companies

          6  agreed to McBride in discussions with us, rather

          7  than having their contract stopped at that point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, I would have

          9  liked to have seen what would have happened in the

         10  City if they would have made that same, you know,

         11  recommendation when we were not working with South

         12  Africa and all of our contracts refused that. I

         13  mean, I think we have -- the City, because we do --

         14  are such a large contractor and we do have such

         15  impact, that our sphere of influence is even way

         16  beyond just here in the City, but certainly the fact

         17  that we affect so many contracts, large amounts of

         18  money, have had I think a really salutary, have had

         19  a really good and human rights affect throughout the

         20  globe, and, yes, I was pretty appalled at the

         21  suggestion that we would back down on any of those.

         22  So we are totally in agreement.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         24  Okay.

         25                 John and I will be happy to answer
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          2  any questions you have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          4                 Andrew, do you want to go first? Go

          5  ahead.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I actually

          7  wanted to ask a few follow-up questions on the

          8  matter of various recommendations made by the Mayor.

          9                 But in fairness, Mr. Newman, I didn't

         10  hear the Director of the Mayor's Office of Contracts

         11  suggest that we do away with legislation such as the

         12  incorporation of the McBride Principles. If I heard

         13  correctly, and I sat through this entire hearing as

         14  you did, I heard him say that when you seek to use

         15  the contracting process to achieve policy goals, one

         16  ought to appropriately keep an eye out on how those

         17  proposals affect the procurement process and whether

         18  or not it is in fact going to have a negative impact

         19  on the efficiency of the procurement process.

         20                 I did not hear him say that we should

         21  jettison any of those principles that have been

         22  established under New York City law, which I voted

         23  for and other members of the Council have voted for,

         24  and I think most everybody within my hearing would

         25  support.
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          2                 However, I do think we would all, if

          3  we are honest with ourselves, acknowledge that

          4  sometimes the implementation of these policy

          5  objectives can have an adverse affect on the

          6  efficiency of the procurement process. So, it

          7  behooves us as City officials who are equally I am

          8  sure interested in efficiency to see if we can't

          9  improve the situation without, of course,

         10  compromising the underlying and overriding, if you

         11  will, policy objectives.

         12                 That is just for the record.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: If I

         14  could read you back their written testimony.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Did you hear

         16  him follow up on it extensively?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: I

         18  heard him say it. It is written right here.

         19                 "Each of these policy objectives

         20  brings with it its own paperwork and process

         21  requirements. Each has the effect of delaying all

         22  procurements to some extent by requiring contractors

         23  to go through the sometimes lengthy process of

         24  determining compliance during the contract approval

         25  phase."

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 The key line is the next one.

          3                 "Alternative processes might presume

          4  compliance and require the exceptional offending

          5  contractors" -- I can tell you, and there is no

          6  doubt, there have been a couple of contracts I can

          7  remember, a couple, one with IBM, one with Ford,

          8  where we held up the contract, no doubt, we delayed

          9  the contract, and we will be happy to plead guilty,

         10  in order to have meetings with what turned out to be

         11  very high level executives of IBM and Ford to make

         12  them understand the City was serious on this issue,

         13  and --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes. But

         15  what you just read back to me, which is fair enough,

         16  doesn't say we should jettison this approach.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: It

         18  says in alternative processes, one would assume that

         19  is not the contract process. And I can tell you --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Well, there

         21  are a number of certification processes within the

         22  law, right? Existing procedures require different

         23  kinds of sign-offs, different forms of evaluation,

         24  and it seems to me that it is fair -- or I think it

         25  is unfair, to characterize the testimony given by

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  the Mayor's representative as saying that somehow

          3  the Administration advocates the jettisoning of

          4  these guidelines in our procurement process. That is

          5  not in fact the case.

          6                 And I think you also know that in

          7  follow-up discussion with my colleagues, he went

          8  further and elaborated at some length, and I think

          9  those statements ought to stand for the record as

         10  well.

         11                 So, I mean I think we are going to

         12  have to disagree on the substance of this, but I

         13  really don't think it is fair to characterize it in

         14  the way that you have.

         15                 That being said, would you, on behalf

         16  of the Comptroller, offer your opinion or reaction

         17  to the proposal that we permit electronic notice of

         18  contract actions?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Great.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: By

         22  the way, I am speaking for myself, and John, because

         23  we discussed them as this was going on, obviously we

         24  are not speaking now for the Comptroller, although

         25  we are attempting to speak for the office.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: And

          4  I will tell you if I think there is a potential that

          5  he might disagree with us. We have no trouble with

          6  the electronic transfer information.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          8                 Do you agree that the Council should

          9  amend the law to authorize the City Chief

         10  Procurement Officer to allow the processing of

         11  contracts to proceed while administrative

         12  certifications are being obtained under appropriate

         13  circumstances?

         14                 And I am reading back from the

         15  testimony.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

         17  would want to look at it further.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         19                 And could you offer any insight that

         20  you might have at this point on facilitating use of

         21  state and federal contracts? One of the things that

         22  I have become aware of is there are a number of

         23  obstacles to using state contracts, say, in the

         24  technology area, and they are not necessarily legal

         25  obstacles, there may be a gap of information, the
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          2  information is not widely distributed, the standards

          3  are not necessarily easily accessible, and some of

          4  the procedures are simply not highlighted for the

          5  ACCOs and for the agency people involved; are you

          6  interested in this topic?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

          8  are interested in the topic. We are generally

          9  supportive of the direction. I don't think you can

         10  eliminate the concept of looking at comparative

         11  costs.

         12                 I think you have to understand to

         13  some extent what is out there in the market. You

         14  have to understand also our own internal

         15  administrative costs. One would presume that

         16  procuring off a state or federal contract saves the

         17  City money versus doing its own procurement --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Right.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:--

         20  And clearly that should be taken into account, which

         21  would encourage you to do that more, and I believe

         22  we would be supportive of some modifications in the

         23  rules that would encourage that.

         24                 On the other hand, we have found

         25  cases where agencies have done that. A year or so
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          2  ago the Police Department was procuring computer

          3  work stations, and when the contract came to us we

          4  did a review of what other jurisdictions -- they

          5  were procuring it off of a state contract -- we did

          6  a review of that contract when it came to us to

          7  discover that other jurisdictions in the country,

          8  using the same work stations were paying appreciably

          9  less than the state was and hence the City was, we

         10  estimated a loss to the City of about $1.3 million

         11  because the Police Department hadn't done the checks

         12  that John and his staff had done.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Keep up the

         14  good work saving money.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         16  Thank you.

         17                 The Police Department quickly did go

         18  out, confirmed that, and on the next -- they had an

         19  order for 13 work stations in process, and they

         20  negotiated the vendor down by $10,000 a work station

         21  for the 13 that had come to our office that had

         22  triggered the review.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes, yes,

         24  yes.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: So,
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          2  conceptually the Mayor's Office of Contracts is 100

          3  percent correct. We have to go in this direction. We

          4  should do it more, but we need to establish some

          5  rules and we just can't uniformly say that if the

          6  state or federal government has a contract, we

          7  should automatically accept it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. But

          9  how do we -- are you aware of any potential set of

         10  rules to guide that?

         11                 I mean, what you just said sounds

         12  very easy to say, the thing is in practice it is

         13  very difficult.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: The

         15  first rule should be to understand our

         16  administrative costs for processing a contract, or a

         17  procurement -- I shouldn't say contract because you

         18  still have the same cost to process a contract --

         19  but process a procurement, because that provides you

         20  with an incentive to want to do this and sort of

         21  provide you the balance.

         22                 The second is, and, John, answer

         23  this, as I recall this did not take a great deal of

         24  work on John's staff to make a couple of calls. It

         25  took some further work to get the details but he
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          2  knew within 24 hours that he had an issue on his

          3  hands.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Right.

          5                 But would you set up a percentage

          6  differential or something like that? In other words

          7  --

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

          9  Well, the Administrative cost part of it encourages

         10  what you just said --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Right.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: And

         13  so that is true. For me, if we had discovered that

         14  the difference in cost on these police computers was

         15  -- that there was a difference in cost, but it was

         16  much less --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Than the

         18  administrative cost of going out to bid ourselves.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: --

         20  Than what we found, so that it was less than or

         21  equivalent to the Administrative cost, or you could

         22  even maybe make the case that it could have even

         23  been slightly higher just to avoid the nuisance,

         24  then it would have been worthwhile going forward

         25  with the state contract. But when you find that the
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          2  differences are substantial, you shouldn't go

          3  forward --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Right. Maybe

          5  there is a way to sort of formalize this and maybe

          6  come up with --

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

          8  would be happy to work with them on doing that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I mean,

         10  probably you would have to look at it first from the

         11  standpoint of absolute amounts, just as a matter of

         12  triage, I guess, and then look within it.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I don't want

         15  to -- you know, those of us who are skeptical about

         16  government can easily imagine this process spawning

         17  a massive, you know, review procedure whereby every

         18  state and federal contract is reviewed ad nauseam by

         19  your office and the Mayor's Office and suddenly we

         20  have found ourselves not doing anything.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: The

         22  balance we are always in is between sort of fairness

         23  and integrity on one side and efficiency on another

         24  side and we are always trying to create the

         25  appropriate balance for each of them. And that
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          2  inevitably is the issue about all of these issues.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes, I

          4  appreciate that. It is an enormously complex

          5  problem, but I appreciate the Comptroller's

          6  commitment to whatever can be done to streamline the

          7  process.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

          9  would be happy to work with that and work towards a

         10  PPB rule that made it a much more viable mechanism.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: By the way, just

         13  on follow up on some of the state and federal

         14  government, I am wondering if we would get into some

         15  kind of problem if they weren't the lowest bidder,

         16  if we wouldn't get into a form of the Diamond

         17  Asphalt question.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: On

         19  something that would otherwise be -- would we get

         20  into it? I am not sure we would because --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am looking at

         22  just the lowest bidder.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

         24  wouldn't be bidding it. What creates the Diamond

         25  Asphalt issue, and I am not an attorney, is the fact
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          2  that it is a formalized bid and therefore a judge

          3  has determined it violates state law, but it happens

          4  to be an issue, we were supportive of the mayoralty

          5  on and agreed with them on what they were trying to

          6  do --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Actually so did

          8  we.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: And

         10  actually still do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, we may be

         12  doing something in that anyway, so --

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: That

         14  would be helpful, because a legislative change is

         15  what is required obviously.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         17                 Although we may be able to do

         18  something at the City level.

         19                 Let me just ask you, because it was

         20  brought up before, the question of that MOC at one

         21  point had said that the Comptroller isn't meeting

         22  the 30-day charter mandated registration? And I

         23  don't want to cast aspersions but you might as well

         24  comment on it while you were there.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: I am
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          2  looking for it, because we are going to actually

          3  write you a letter.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh, okay.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: The

          6  answer is, I think that it was true for very limited

          7  number of contracts. Three of the contracts were

          8  ongoing maintenance contracts and were just

          9  automatically renewed, and, yes, we registered them

         10  after they continued by a number of days, and a few

         11  of them were ongoing investment contracts that were

         12  renewed and we continued them after they prior one

         13  had expired and the new one began.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: By the way, were

         15  you aware of this fund?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: The

         17  Fund for the City of New York?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Yes,

         20  it actually exists from some time I believe in the

         21  Dinkins Administration, or late in the Koch

         22  Administration. It is $8 million, it is a revolving

         23  fund. We worked with Claude's predecessors and with

         24  OMB in writing the rules for the fund back I guess

         25  five years ago. I assume our predecessors did the
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          2  same with the Dinkins Administration.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you also make

          4  recommendations?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Do

          6  we make recommendations? No. You should know nobody

          7  asked the question, the default rate on the Fund is

          8  very low, I believe in this number of years it has

          9  been operating --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: For some reason I

         11  assumed there would be a lien against the -- or

         12  something against the payment they would be getting.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Yes.

         14  But if a contractor went totally out of business,

         15  there have in fact I believe been two in the eight

         16  years, for a very small amount of money. I don't

         17  know if it was eight years, whatever the number of

         18  years it has been.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And then let

         20  me just ask you also, because we talked about the

         21  confusion and the complexity of the Human Service

         22  providers, what would you recommend making it

         23  easier? What did you think of my idea of having --

         24  piggy-backed on Bill Perkins' -- basically having a

         25  time where you can go back in and actually correct
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          2  any kind of obvious delays or getting signatures or

          3  something like that, and any other proposals?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: I

          5  agree with my predecessor and the chair here that

          6  the City should be looking for outstanding

          7  contractors, and at best very good contractors. So,

          8  I think it is incumbent upon us to write clear,

          9  specific rules about what we want.

         10                 If we are capable of doing that, and

         11  an agency bidder is not capable of following them,

         12  then that is a demonstration at least of the

         13  administrative ability of the potential bidder, and

         14  if we have got lots of bidders who can follow the

         15  rules and a couple who can't, they ought to figure

         16  out how to make themselves administratively better,

         17  rather than our creating all kinds of loopholes.

         18                 And like the other one here, we were

         19  having the engaged discussion about the three-hour

         20  issue. I, for one, am troubled by it also, that if

         21  it says clearly you are supposed to have your RFP in

         22  by noon on April 16th, you should have your RFP in

         23  by noon of April 16th. I used to be a federal

         24  contractor, I don't remember ever losing a bid, we

         25  lost bids, but we never lost it because we didn't
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          2  get it in on time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Any other

          4  comments on things you think you could do to, you

          5  know, alleviate some of the problems?

          6                 Let me also ask, what do you do if a

          7  provider calls your office and requests information

          8  on why contract approval is being delayed?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: We

         10  try to find it for them. We call the agencies, we

         11  call MOC, we go through that frequently. We get

         12  calls. I get them, John gets them, others on the

         13  staff get them, we get them from contractors, we get

         14  them from -- in fact, one of your contract

         15  representatives was in the room before, he has left,

         16  calls me periodically and calls John periodically

         17  tracking out the status of his contracts. All kinds

         18  of elected officials call us on behalf of

         19  constituent groups. We try to be helpful and track

         20  it down, we try to be useful.

         21                 I think this suggestion that Mr.

         22  Millman made before about the use of the Mayor's

         23  Management Report, I think that is a wonderful

         24  suggestion. The more information provided, the more

         25  comparisons that can be made between agencies. I
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          2  think that that can be very helpful. I think it has

          3  been helpful in the expediting the payment process

          4  within agencies, the City publishes --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Dare I mention

          6  that that was this Committee who highlighted that

          7  and started pushing it?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN: Oh,

          9  congratulations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And I have been

         11  asking for more --

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         13  Well, congratulations. That is a wonderful step in

         14  the right direction.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMPTROLLER NEWMAN:

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Next we will have

         20  Lynne Weikart, of the City Project.

         21                 MS. WEIKART: Good morning.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Hello.

         23                 MS. WIEKART: I am Lynne Weikart --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Before you start,

         25  if you could raise your right hand.
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          2                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

          3  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          4                 MS. WEIKART: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, then

          6  proceed, and identify yourself.

          7                 MS. WEIKART: I am Lynne Weikart, the

          8  Executive Director of City Project. Actually I would

          9  like to thank you for holding these hearings,

         10  because by the shear act of holding them you have

         11  made a big difference I think for human services

         12  organizations out there, because it sounds as if MOC

         13  is starting to move in the right direction, and so

         14  we are really excited about the fact that you went

         15  to the mat on this and it has been very helpful.

         16                 For those of you who don't know, City

         17  Project is a non-profit, non-partisan, public policy

         18  organization that provides research, training and

         19  advocacy on City budget and other issues.

         20                 We publish regular comments in all

         21  major City budget documents and it's in that

         22  analytical role that we have become increasingly

         23  concerned with the delays in human services

         24  contracting.

         25                 We do not, ourselves, receive any
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          2  City money of any kind or any government money of

          3  any kind. We exist through membership and

          4  foundations.

          5                 I won't read most of this, but what

          6  we did last fall was that we looked at the political

          7  problem of so many organizations not receiving

          8  contracts in a timely manner, but once we saw what

          9  had happened and talked to City Council members

         10  about it and the political struggle was finally

         11  resolved, we then went back to those same 55

         12  agencies and we are doing that now, we have been

         13  doing it in January, February and March, and it was

         14  clear to us when we went back that there was still a

         15  serious problem out there in the contracting

         16  process.

         17                 Out of the 55 agencies, we managed to

         18  get 35 of them. And of these 35, 13 were youth

         19  services organizations at part of the Neighborhood

         20  Family Services Coalition, and 22 were service and

         21  advocacy groups.

         22                 Of the 13, seven had received their

         23  funding by December, and of the remaining six, only

         24  one had been notified that their funds had been

         25  released and the other five had no idea what was
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          2  going on as of the end of January.

          3                 Of the 22 service and advocacy

          4  organizations contacted in January and February, and

          5  then again, right now at the end of March and April,

          6  we found that most organizations were still confused

          7  as to what was going on.

          8                 Not only that, but the groups did not

          9  want to go on the record talking about their

         10  experiences because they didn't want to be

         11  identified.

         12                 Several of these groups face public

         13  hearings as late as the end of March or early April.

         14  Of those that we have been able to get a hold of, 14

         15  of the 22 organizations have not been able to fully

         16  implement their contract programs.

         17                 And there is every reason we think

         18  that what we found among these 35 groups is simply

         19  the tip of the iceberg.

         20                 The fact is that hundreds, if not

         21  thousands of community groups funded by the City

         22  Council are largely at the mercy of a contracting

         23  process. This is true in spite of the fact that some

         24  90 percent of the contracts we looked into are for

         25  services that were funded in the previous year.
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          2                 In other words, these are experienced

          3  organizations with established contracting records,

          4  and the delays in funding are thus unconscionable.

          5  They lend credence to the idea that community groups

          6  are being held hostage in a political environment.

          7                 And we would urge the Council

          8  continue to look into the practices of the Mayor's

          9  Office of Contracts in particular. MOC seems to be

         10  the weak link. We have talked to the

         11  City Comptroller's Office, it seems to be doing its

         12  job registering contracts. It has a mandate that it

         13  has to do it within 30 days. Whereas the Mayor's

         14  Office of Contracts has no time limitation

         15  whatsoever, and this is what we think is really

         16  missing, is that the City Council, as an oversight

         17  organization, does not have the information it needs

         18  to do the oversight.

         19                 We don't know how long contracts are

         20  sitting in MOC. We don't know how many are kicked

         21  out from MOC and go back to the City agency. We

         22  don't know how many then go back to MOC and sit

         23  there for six months or seven months. We only know

         24  when they are kicked out.

         25                 And what needs to happen,
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          2  particularly since we are designing a new

          3  information system, the Financial Management System,

          4  FMS 2000, what needs to happen is we need to put

          5  fields right into FMS 2000 that allows us to keep

          6  track of what is going on in MOC, and that way the

          7  City Council would be able to judge it for

          8  themselves rather than depending upon testimony from

          9  MOC.

         10                 We think that the only way to force

         11  this change is to pressure MOC continually and not

         12  let up on them. Because as we have seen this

         13  morning, if we say, we call them before you and you

         14  ask them questions, they begin to respond.

         15                 I can only applaud what MOC agreed,

         16  is advocating today, except they need to understand

         17  they should be under a time limit and they try to

         18  avoid all discussion of time limits and we would

         19  like to see time limits instituted in the Mayor's

         20  Office of Contracts, which should become part of a

         21  public record. And once it becomes public, it is

         22  amazing how many things are resolved.

         23                 Thank you for the chance to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         25                 I was sorry, and I can understand why
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          2  MOC might not have responded about the fact that so

          3  many of these contracts do seem to have gotten

          4  caught up in what was clearly a political problem,

          5  as opposed to addressing the ongoing needs of the

          6  citizens of the City, because the needs are there

          7  whether the politics gets in the way or not, which

          8  unfortunately tying all of these contracts up in

          9  that process, not only doesn't provide the services,

         10  and obviously shows a very hardened approach to the

         11  needs of the City, but it does nothing to make

         12  people happier with the political process. In fact,

         13  it just makes them more cynical.

         14                 MS. WEIKART: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And that doesn't

         16  help either.

         17                 Let me ask you, MOC says that they

         18  only deal with about 20 percent of the City's

         19  contracts, I was wondering if that was --

         20                 MS. WEIKART: I don't know how many of

         21  the Human Services contracts they deal with, which

         22  is really the interesting point there.

         23                 It may be 20 percent of all

         24  contracts, but how many are Human Services is

         25  probably a much higher percent.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

          3                 And I think we are going to, and I

          4  don't know if anybody wanted to comment on this,

          5  because there are some people from the Mayor's

          6  Office over there, and from PPB, but judging from

          7  the way MOC responded about most of these contracts

          8  not having a problem, and judging from what you just

          9  commented in the kind of numbers that you have given

         10  us, it is clear there is still a problem out there.

         11                 MS. WEIKART: Obviously. For some

         12  reason that none of us understand, the political

         13  settlement in November has not gone on. Of those

         14  agencies, there are still agencies that have not

         15  received any funding to date, and don't know what is

         16  going on with your own contracts.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. And do

         18  you find that these are largely the agencies, or

         19  organizations that haven't been funded, do you find

         20  that these are organizations that may or may not

         21  have, if you know, either complained about the

         22  Administration?

         23                 MS. WEIKART: There is no way to tell.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         25                 MS. WEIKART: I can only say that they

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  are all fearful, that no way do they wish to be

          3  recognized.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. Well, we

          5  knew that because we obviously reached out and asked

          6  a number of them to respond, and almost to an agency

          7  -- none of them wanted to because they were afraid

          8  of repercussions.

          9                 MS. WEIKART: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Now, as I said, I

         11  did offer them to come in an put a paper bag over

         12  their heads so no one could see them, but for some

         13  strange reason they weren't willing to do that

         14  either.

         15                 MS. WEIKART: That's understandable.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Although it made

         17  the point.

         18                 And unfortunately the way the budget

         19  mods come through, even in March you are still

         20  working on another budget mod, and so here we are

         21  through three-quarters of the fiscal year and yet a

         22  number of these still haven't responded and they are

         23  still held in the throws of the politics that

         24  presumably we got over last November.

         25                 MS. WEIKART: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 So, I actually really want to thank

          4  City Project for the great work that you are doing.

          5                 MS. WEIKART: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And I look forward

          7  to working with you, and let me just say that any of

          8  these agencies or organizations who are having

          9  problems, if they would contact my office, either my

         10  office or my counsel, on the contracts, we will do

         11  whatever we can to try and see that all of these are

         12  worked through.

         13                 MS. WEIKART: Good.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: In many cases we

         15  don't find out about it. I know that in my group I

         16  had to write letters about it early on saying the

         17  funding would be there as soon as it is released,

         18  but that doesn't help if the group is so small that

         19  it has to go out of business.

         20                 MS. WEIKART: Well, we can contact

         21  those agencies of the 55 who haven't been taken care

         22  of yet, and ask them to get in touch with Andrew or

         23  yourself.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. Hopefully

         25  that won't be a problem because we will forward ask,
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          2  we will talk to MOC and see what the ongoing

          3  problems are and the Comptroller's Office and see

          4  what we can do so they can get paid, and PS, we

          5  would also like to know if any of them were offered

          6  a chance to -- those who were approved, to get a

          7  loan from the City of New York Fund that we have

          8  heard about.

          9                 MS. WEIKART: The Fund for the City of

         10  New York, which is a private, non-profit

         11  organization funded by Ford principally --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Gee, that is the

         13  first time I have heard that.

         14                 MS. WEIKART: Yes.

         15                 It has an $8 million --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Funny thing about

         17  that, I thought it was the City.

         18                 MS. WEIKART: It is studious to

         19  provide technical assistance to City agencies.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I see.

         21                 MS. WEIKART: And it has an $8 million

         22  revolving fund that, as far as I understand it, is

         23  City dollars. And it is a wonderful program. I think

         24  it is probably much too small, and they administrate

         25  it incredibly well and effective.
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          2                 It would be interesting to hear from

          3  the Fund for the City of New York to see what they

          4  think in terms of the size of the pot and the

          5  process.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We may invite them

          7  to come in and testify at some point, although my

          8  guess is they won't. But maybe it is due to the size

          9  of the pot. But certainly we are still talking, we

         10  are even using the Comptroller's dollars, almost a

         11  billion dollars in funding had been still delayed

         12  even more recently.

         13                 MS. WEIKART: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So clearly the

         15  problem goes on.

         16                 MS. WEIKART: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right. And

         18  thank you so much for your good work.

         19                 MS. WEIKART: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And we are going

         21  to call everyone up in the last panel so that we can

         22  get you on.

         23                 We have Clarence Patton, from the New

         24  York City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violent Project,

         25  which may have left.
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          2                 Nadine Peyser I know left.

          3                 Alex Duncan, from the Eviction

          4  Intervention Services. They are still here.

          5                 I know Fran Barrett is still here,

          6  from the Community Resource Exchange, and anyone

          7  else who is here to testify.

          8                 If you have a written statement.

          9                 MR. DUNCAN: It is not typed.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         11                 As you know, we ask everyone to swear

         12  in, so if you would raise your right hands, please.

         13                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

         14  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 MR. DUNCAN: I do.

         16                 MS. BARRETT: I do.

         17                 MS. CAPUTE: I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great. Fran, you

         19  might as well start off and we will go right across

         20  and just identify yourself for the record, please.

         21                 MS. BARRETT: Thank you.

         22                 My name is Fran Barrett. I run a

         23  non-profit organization called Community Resource

         24  Exchange.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Get a little
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          2  closer to the mic, please.

          3                 MS. BARRETT: Community Resource

          4  Exchange is an intermediary organization, we don't

          5  provide direct service to poor people. We instead

          6  work through other non-profits. Our work is

          7  particularly on the management issues that affect

          8  those non-profits. Most of the non-profits we work

          9  with are small, most of them have operating budgets

         10  under $500,000, and I can say that many of them have

         11  operating budgets extremely far, under $500,000 a

         12  year.

         13                 Where in the course of any given year

         14  we will see somewhere in the vicinity of about 250

         15  community-based organizations. We are not an

         16  advocacy organization. We don't have a policy arm,

         17  we don't have research capacity. We actually count

         18  on City Project for a lot of that thinking. Most of

         19  my comments will come basically from experience,

         20  therefore I don't have written testimony on it, and

         21  I will be glad to follow up on any particular issue

         22  that would be relevant to you or you would want to

         23  do, would want to have more information on.

         24                 I want to start with a little bit of

         25  context, just to be sure that we are all aware of
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          2  some of the basic numbers about the non-profit

          3  sector in New York, and forgive me if you have heard

          4  these things before.

          5                 I am referring first to the

          6  non-profit industry study, which is unfortunately

          7  now about seven years old, but there are rumors that

          8  it will be revised pretty soon. But even at that,

          9  seven years ago we had almost 20,000 non-profits in

         10  New York employing 450,000 people. That is more

         11  people than work on Wall Street.

         12                 Of those 20,000 non-profits, easily,

         13  every easily, in excess of 80 percent of them are

         14  under $1 million operating budget.

         15                 In fact, the average non-profit in

         16  New York at that time had an operating budget of

         17  about 400,000 which translates to a staff of about

         18  ten people.

         19                 In that type of organization, you are

         20  talking about an Executive Director as the sort of

         21  chief cook and bottle washer. This person, they

         22  don't have a lot of infrastructure, we don't have a

         23  Finance Department, and therefore, that lack of, or

         24  that fragile infrastructure makes it very difficult

         25  for small organizations to deal with the City.
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          2                 It is my observation that the City is

          3  now engaged in a sort of drift towards funding

          4  larger organizations with larger grants, that the

          5  idea of that I am quite sure makes a lot of sense,

          6  business sense for the City. Dealing with $10,000,

          7  $20,000 $50,000 contracts probably is very hard for

          8  something as large as the City of New York. But at

          9  the same time, I would ask the Council to realize

         10  the implications of that, in that community-based

         11  organizations, 70 percent of non-profits in New York

         12  are community-based organizations, that these are

         13  very often first employers, they create economic

         14  issues in their own communities, and they get the

         15  job done when they are actually trying to provide a

         16  service.

         17                 So that this notion that we are

         18  moving towards larger contracts in the ever, ever

         19  dying pursuit of efficiency seems to me has

         20  unintended consequences that I would ask the Council

         21  to pay attention to.

         22                 The Fund for the City of New York,

         23  which keeps coming up all day, as Lynne said, it is

         24  an operating foundation, and they report their

         25  activity every year, so it is certainly readily
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          2  available to you, the information that you might

          3  want to get about the Fund for the City of New York.

          4                 If you note from the testimony given

          5  earlier, we heard that about 75 people, or 75 to 85

          6  loans get made. We also heard that 1,195 contracts

          7  are processed through the Comptroller's Office, so

          8  you can see that the Fund, Loan Fund is obviously

          9  pretty far understaffed, it is only 75 out of 1,195

         10  are actually being able to get the money they need.

         11                 One side thing, following up on

         12  another point made earlier, is the idea of this

         13  scrutiny of Board members. I am sorry that

         14  Councilwoman Quinn left, and perhaps for the two of

         15  you, you know already that it is very hard to find

         16  Board members for a non-profit organization, and if

         17  we are going to start delving into their personal

         18  finances and things like that, it is going to be

         19  very difficult to be able to recruit and maintain

         20  active Board members, and particularly where there

         21  is a lot of risk, financial risk for non-profits in

         22  a small organization.

         23                 One thing I do want to say again

         24  about small organizations is that one of the

         25  unintended consequences of squeezing out small
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          2  organizations is the detrimental affect on the

          3  immigrant community which I think even this

          4  Administration is supportive of.

          5                 The immigrant organizations are in

          6  fact recreating, they recreate the non-profit sector

          7  in a microcosm for their own immigrant community;

          8  therefore, we have Greek women centers, we have, you

          9  know, Filipino youth programs, we have even AIDS

         10  organizations that are particular to certain

         11  ethnics. I, for one, would say that is a good thing

         12  for the City of New York.

         13                 My friend Mike Clark at the Citizens

         14  Committee for New York says that every day a million

         15  people get up and try to do good in the City. It

         16  seems to me that the Council could be very helpful

         17  in encouraging those people, and encouraging the

         18  Administration, to be more receptive, although we

         19  certainly heard positive language out of the Mayor's

         20  Office of Contracts today, and I do agree with you,

         21  Lynne, that that is a lot due to your credit, and we

         22  are very grateful for that.

         23                 One thing about the contract process

         24  itself, fundamentally I think we should segment it

         25  to size. Under a certain size, and they seem to be
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          2  headed that way, things like budget modifications,

          3  it makes no sense to do a budget modification on a

          4  $5,000, $10,000, $20,000 contract. Simply makes no

          5  sense. You ought to just agree these are the people

          6  you are funding, you are their sole funder, you kind

          7  of agree to an outcome. More and more foundations

          8  are looking for results, just buy into that and see

          9  what happens.

         10                 My sense also is in terms of contract

         11  negotiations, and this is completely experiential,

         12  it may not be other people's experience, but in fact

         13  what happens when you get to a contract is, you go

         14  to the City agency, they show you the last page and

         15  you sign it, and you drag your Board chair down

         16  there and he goes to the last page or she goes to

         17  the last page and they sign it and as long as you

         18  have got that little seal you are in business. But

         19  in fact, if it was a real contract negotiation, we

         20  would be adding language that said we enter into

         21  this in good faith. From the minute we deliver

         22  service, the City of New York is liable, and if in

         23  fact there is money to be borrowed, it should be

         24  borrowed by the City of New York while we are

         25  providing the service while the process is being
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          2  complete.

          3                 It is the point of service that makes

          4  the difference, not the contract processing thing.

          5  Many, many non-profits that I work with get into a

          6  lot of trouble by offering service before the City

          7  approves the contract, you can see not that many

          8  people get through the loan, so they are extending

          9  themselves through other types of loans through

         10  other financial instruments, mostly straight from

         11  commercial banks.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Bridge loans also.

         13                 MS. BARRETT: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: In fact, a lot of

         15  the same trustees are now going to have to give

         16  financial information are the same ones who are

         17  sometimes leaned on to get those bridge loans, in

         18  which in many cases they can't get.

         19                 MS. BARRETT: That's right.

         20                 One thing I want to point out to you

         21  in terms of this business of the, what do they call

         22  the contract problems, they have some language for

         23  that? Corrective action. These are things that they

         24  identify as ways in which the organizations have

         25  some sort of shortcomings, and I would say that you
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          2  could encourage them, and I hope this doesn't sound

          3  self-serving, but if there are in fact contract

          4  problems, or performance problems, the Council could

          5  ensure that there is more money put into management

          6  assistance or places where the organizations could

          7  turn and actually get these problems solved. Just

          8  identifying them and putting them on the group. If

          9  the group had the wherewithal to fix them, they

         10  wouldn't have them in the first place. There has to

         11  be some money put into it, and right now I think

         12  only DYCD has any money putting into helping the

         13  groups with management assistance or technical

         14  assistance. Private foundations do provide some of

         15  that money.

         16                 I think one other issue that is going

         17  on right now in terms of contract work is that for

         18  many years it was possible to operate informally. In

         19  other words, there were point people in agencies who

         20  could make something happen, and everybody sort of

         21  knew who they were.

         22                 Right now with the downsizing of City

         23  government, with the integration of agencies, you

         24  have a lot of people doing this work who have never

         25  done it before, they are out of their own title,
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          2  they are out of their own job, and even if they

          3  wanted to, they wouldn't be able to help you. So

          4  there is less and less ability access, and less and

          5  less effectiveness inside some of the agencies.

          6                 I think that is pretty much all of my

          7  points. Thank you for the opportunity.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          9                 I did have one very quick question,

         10  based on your comments about the survey that was

         11  done I guess seven years ago, that found that then

         12  the average not-for-profit was -- their contracts

         13  were about $400,000?

         14                 MS. BARRETT: The average budget size

         15  was $400,000, that would include public and private

         16  dollars.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED; okay.

         18                 MS. BARRETT: So there has never been

         19  a study to focus on what the average contract size

         20  was yet.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because one of the

         22  things that the Administration is pushing us on, and

         23  for a number of reasons we haven't moved on yet, was

         24  this business of small procurement contracts, and it

         25  sounds like the $100,000, and initially it was
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          2  $50,000, may actually still be too small for a lot

          3  of these agencies so that they probably wouldn't be

          4  picking up a lot of these human service providers.

          5                 MS. BARRETT: Yes, I think it may be

          6  too small. I understand the point about

          7  accountability, but $100,000, if you think about

          8  $100,000 operation, that is basically two people and

          9  rent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         11                 MS. BARRETT: You know, and that is

         12  two people making $25,000 to $30,000. I mean, so you

         13  know, the easier we can make it for those

         14  organizations, the more productive they can be.

         15                 There was an interesting issue about

         16  how much it costs the City for all of this

         17  administrative hoopla to go on. You are not getting

         18  your dollar's worth or your money's worth if

         19  everybody is spending all of their time doing

         20  administration, you are certainly not getting your

         21  money's worth.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         23                 Mr. Duncan.

         24                 MR. DUNCAN: Good morning. Alex

         25  Duncan. I am Development Liaison of Eviction
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          2  Intervention Services, which means I am the

          3  primarily fundraising person, I work directly with

          4  the Executive Director, and I am here to make -- I

          5  first of all would like to thank you for the

          6  hearing, and I am here to make a statement regarding

          7  our EAF, Emergency Assistance for Families Contract,

          8  which has not been paid in a timely fashion.

          9                 Our mission at EIS is the prevention

         10  of homelessness, we prevent evictions. Each time a

         11  family ends up on the street, the community pays a

         12  heavy price, both economically and socially.

         13                 EIS offers a vital resource and

         14  struggle to preserve affordable housing and quality

         15  of life in New York City by providing legal advice

         16  and when necessary a representation in Housing Court

         17  for low- to moderate-income tenants.

         18                 Access to legal service is a critical

         19  tool in securing a tenants home. Landlords come to

         20  court with lawyers, and 95 percent of tenants do

         21  not.

         22                 The Emergency Assistance for Families

         23  contract is a vital link in our ability to

         24  accomplish our task. Through the EAF contract, EIS

         25  is able to provide for families on public
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          2  assistance, and when possible, for working families

          3  with children who are facing eviction and can show

          4  that they are able to pay the future rent.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Hang on just a

          6  second. Gentlemen in the back, excuse me. I am

          7  sorry, we will be out of here quicker if we don't

          8  have to hear your conversation. It is very loud up

          9  here, so maybe you can take it outside, please.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 Sorry, go ahead.

         12                 MR. DUNCAN: Thank you.

         13                 As part of our EAF program, we also

         14  assist families with young children under 18 who are

         15  in danger of being evicted and who are on public

         16  assistance stay in their apartments by providing

         17  them access to Jiggetts, which is a state-sponsored

         18  rent subsidy.

         19                 Most clients who come to us through

         20  the EAF contract are young mothers with no resources

         21  of any kind. Most of them are from the Bronx, our

         22  poorest borough. With young mothers, one can't help

         23  but be concerned about the children who represent

         24  the future of New York. A circle of dependency

         25  continues to grow with mother and child who are
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          2  without a home.

          3                 The EAF contract is a vital link to

          4  EIS' ability to provide service. EAF contract

          5  represents approximately one half of the EIS'

          6  operating budget, the other half is provided by

          7  private sources. Through the EAF contract, EIS

          8  provides an agreed upon vital service and naturally

          9  we expect to be compensated in a timely fashion.

         10                 We have not been. We are owed over

         11  $17,000 from the previous fiscal year and have

         12  received a small portion of what is owed us on our

         13  current contract. Our last payment was in February

         14  for $58,380, the contract calls for payment of

         15  $379,080. We did take a loan through the New York

         16  Loan Fund that has been discussed here several

         17  times. It is reasonable to expect compensation for

         18  services provided. Slow payment from the EAF

         19  contract has placed tremendous financial pressure on

         20  EIS. Last fall we nearly had to close. We came that

         21  close to not being able to meet payroll.

         22                 We have been forced to cut staff.

         23  Last fall we had three attorneys, now we have two.

         24  We have lost a paralegal who provided needed support

         25  to our attorneys, our contract calls for us to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  expedite 30 cases a month, we expedite more like 40,

          3  and have not been paid for most of them.

          4                 It is vital to the City of New York

          5  to keep people in their homes, and prevent them from

          6  ending up on the street. The cost of sheltering a

          7  homeless family is far higher than the cost of

          8  preventing an eviction.

          9                 Thank you for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         11                 Were you ever given any reason for

         12  the delay or why you weren't funded? What any of the

         13  problems were?

         14                 MR. DUNCAN: I heard reasons, I have

         15  forgotten them. But they just say "we can't do it

         16  yet. We can't do it yet."

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The contract was

         18  approved, obviously?

         19                 MR. DUNCAN: The contract has been

         20  approved.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And you were

         22  providing the services and for reasons out of your

         23  control you have never received the money that you

         24  were owed.

         25                 MS. DUNCAN: They have been behind for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  some time now. Last fall I believe it was when the

          3  budget was not approved in Council, that was the

          4  time we had the biggest problem and we nearly went

          5  under.

          6                 Since then they have been slow. They

          7  have been slower than they were before. So, whatever

          8  settlement has been made has not speeded them up, it

          9  has slowed them down.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         11  you.

         12                 By the way, we should talk after this

         13  to see if we can get them moving, and talk to MOC

         14  and see if we can get more money to your agency.

         15                 MR. DUNCAN: Oh, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         17                 Okay, next?

         18                 MS: Thank you. I was invited by your

         19  office or City Projects, I have been speaking with

         20  both. I am Melanie Capute, I am Executive Director

         21  of the Caribbean Cultural Center here in New York,

         22  and I am responding basically to the delay in

         23  contracts by the Department of Cultural Affairs.

         24                 We are an ethnic or culturally ethnic

         25  specific organization. I am in no way representing
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          2  that community but in fact up until Fran spoke I

          3  didn't hear anybody address the communities of

          4  color.

          5                 The work of the Center is dedicated

          6  to documenting, preserving and promoting the

          7  cultural contributions and creative expressions of

          8  people of color, particularly people of African

          9  descent. The Caribbean Cultural Center has long been

         10  recognized as the pioneer in presenting programming

         11  that reflects and includes African culture and

         12  experiences. For over 23 years we have presented

         13  innovative, culturally diverse programs that

         14  celebrate and reflect the browning and cultural

         15  diversity in New York and America.

         16                 We now find many of the

         17  European-based cultural institutions in this City

         18  imitating these programs in order to garner the

         19  public dollar support to address what has been

         20  termed as special audiences. I guess those folks who

         21  look more and more like me.

         22                 Once again, our community-based

         23  organizations have been slighted as the others

         24  continue to capitalize on our programs, our

         25  constituencies and the audiences we have nurtured
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          2  over many years.

          3                 In spite of our history and our

          4  expertise, agencies like the Department of Cultural

          5  Affairs, its budgetary constraints and the contract

          6  delays continue to lay out plans and build barriers

          7  that set up our culturally-specific organizations

          8  for their demise.

          9                 Most of our community-based

         10  organizations have been forced to curtail, delay or

         11  cancel their programming schedules and reduce their

         12  staff because there is no real sense of how the

         13  funding will turn over, and yet others have been

         14  forced to close their doors.

         15                 Still others who continue to fight

         16  for our piece of the pie are not invited to the

         17  bargaining table with the policy and decision makers

         18  for our input, suggestions and requests for meetings

         19  with legislators, commissioners and those policy

         20  makers, in fact they are often ignored and put on

         21  the back burner.

         22                 For example, the Latino and Black

         23  Cultural Arts Community, none of whom are present in

         24  this room today, really are concerned about how this

         25  will affect their future funding.
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          2                 They have requested meetings with the

          3  Commissioner and have received no response.

          4                 Clearly, this non-responsiveness

          5  sends a negative message to our communities that

          6  reflects a lack of respect. There is no mechanism

          7  for guaranteeing the Commissioner's attendance or

          8  that of his staff at any of our events, therefore,

          9  how can they ever be educated on the important roles

         10  that our institutions play beyond what they read in

         11  the proposals we submit year after year? How can

         12  they in fact better understand what it is we do?

         13                 Clearly, our organizations do not fit

         14  the model definition of an arts institution, like

         15  the ones that are considered the majors or CIGs in

         16  this City.

         17                 Our art is an art for living, it is

         18  not art for art sake. The CIGs are safe and are

         19  cared for by the City, by its endowments and their

         20  rich board members. Our organizations are not.

         21                 Although there are many institutions

         22  in our communities with better than 20 years

         23  history, such as the Caribbean Cultural Center, we

         24  are still referred to as emergent institutions.

         25                 As I mentioned earlier, these major
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          2  institutions are being encouraged to implement

          3  programs that focus on the special audiences of this

          4  City, audiences of color. The small pot of money

          5  available to our institutions is extremely limited,

          6  and now we are going to find ourselves competing

          7  with the CIGs who are being asked to develop similar

          8  programs.

          9                 The delays and partial pay-outs on

         10  the present contract process deems that there is a

         11  need for reorganization at the agency at the

         12  Department of Cultural Affairs.

         13                 In fact, it is my understanding that

         14  there are conversations about eliminating DCA, and

         15  establishing now a local community development fund

         16  that will include sports and arts funding. Where do

         17  we fit in that picture?

         18                 A similar action was enacted by the

         19  state and many organizations have expressed concern

         20  at its failure. Again these conversations are

         21  underway with no participation or inclusion by

         22  organizations of color at the table.

         23                 We cannot allow the establishment of

         24  yet another agency without hearing from our cultural

         25  arts communities.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            144

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 This will only allow for the further

          3  detriment of our community-based organizations that

          4  deliver effective cultural arts an education

          5  programming.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 I thank all of you for testifying,

         10  and I just want to point out for the record that we

         11  have also gotten testimony from the New York City

         12  Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project, which will be

         13  made part of the record.

         14                 And I guarantee you, we will be

         15  revisiting this issue and try to stay on top of it

         16  to make sure that the funds go out there, that

         17  contracts are executed and paid for on time.

         18                 So, thank you again very much.

         19                 MS. CAPUTE: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: This hearing is

         21  closed.

         22                 (The following testimony was read

         23  into the record.)

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Clarence Patton, Director of Community Organizing

          3  New York City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project

          4

          5                 Speaker Vallone and members of the

          6  City Council:

          7                 Thank you for inviting the New York

          8  City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project to

          9  testify at today's hearing. AVP is grateful for this

         10  opportunity to let the City Council members know how

         11  their generosity and support actually played out in

         12  the day-to-day life of a community-based

         13  organization this fiscal year.

         14                 Unfortunately, AVP is one of the many

         15  CBOs unlucky enough to be caught in the political

         16  tug-of-war over these City Council funds. About a

         17  year ago, AVP applied for and succeeded in securing

         18  several discretionary grants from several City

         19  Council members and Borough Delegations in the

         20  amount of $116,500. These grants were for a variety

         21  of anti-violence activities ranging from the salary

         22  for a domestic violence victim advocate to outreach

         23  activities in boroughs other than Manhattan to the

         24  printing of the 1998 National Report of

         25  Anti-Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender
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          2  Violence.

          3                 Each of these generous grants was

          4  earmarked for specific projects that furthered the

          5  mission of the organization and would help us better

          6  serve lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and

          7  HIV-positive victims of hate crime, bias attacks,

          8  sexual assault, same-sex domestic violence and

          9  police misconduct. Of AVP's overall operating budget

         10  of $1.3 million, these City Council grants equaled

         11  approximately nine percent.

         12                 As you know, awards for these items

         13  were to be made sometime around October 1998. The

         14  funds, secured through approved workplans and signed

         15  contracts, were to come to us through the Mayor's

         16  Office of Criminal Justice Coordinator, since this

         17  is one of the city agencies that funds AVP.

         18                 Needless to say, as of today, we have

         19  not received any of the City Council money, nor have

         20  we even received any of the additional $30,147 which

         21  constitutes the annual contract we have directly

         22  with the Office of Criminal Justice Coordinator.

         23                 However, like most other CBOs, we

         24  have continued to do the work in spite of this total

         25  of $146,647, or 11 percent, gap in our budget.
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          2                 Unlike other CBOs, however, for the

          3  most part we have been able to avoid serous cash

          4  flow problems by using general operating monies

          5  raised through special events and major donor

          6  requests. That is, until now. We are currently at

          7  the point where we are seriously hurting for that

          8  money.

          9                 In fact, we have had to take a bridge

         10  loan from the Fund for the City of New York to make

         11  our last payroll.

         12                 Our Director of Finance and

         13  Administration has been repeatedly calling the

         14  Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator to

         15  inquire about the money, to no avail. Finally, with

         16  calls to Speaker Vallone's Office, Council Member

         17  Phil Reed's Office, Council Member Margarita Lopez'

         18  office and Council Member Christine Quinn's office

         19  within the last three weeks, we thought we were

         20  making headway. However, we were wrong in our

         21  assumption. To make matters worse, two week ago we

         22  received a call from the Criminal Justice

         23  Coordinator's Office, we were told that since AVP

         24  moved the location of its offices last July, it

         25  would now have to undergo a Fair Share analysis to
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          2  see if it actually qualifies for the $146,647

          3  already granted and contracted, money we should have

          4  already received six months ago. The Fair Share

          5  process is similar to a modified ULURP process, and

          6  is tedious to say the least. Even though AVP only

          7  moved from 13th Street to 35th Street in Manhattan,

          8  a distance of about one mile, we now need to

          9  document:

         10                 - AVP's impact on the neighborhood.

         11                 -its compatibility with existing

         12  facilities and programs, both city and non-city.

         13                 - identify every facility and service

         14  within a half mile radius from 35th Street, which

         15  incidentally places us back in our old neighborhood.

         16                 - describe the suitability of a new

         17  site to provide cost-effective services.

         18                 - document the consistency of the

         19  agency's work with the:

         20                 - Strategic Policy Statements of the

         21  Mayor.

         22                 - Strategic Policy Statement of the

         23  Manhattan Borough President's Office, as well as,

         24  the Statement of Needs issued by Community Board No.

         25  4, and finally, document why our new neighborhood is
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          2  in particular need of the services we provide.

          3                 Not only is this process academic

          4  since the distance of the move was minimal, but it

          5  is also not since AVP is the only provider of direct

          6  services to victims of anti-lesbian, gay bisexual,

          7  transgender and HIV-positive violence in all of New

          8  York City.

          9                 The process of developing the Fair

         10  Share analysis will exhaust valuable staff resources

         11  and ensures that AVP will probably not receive its

         12  funding for another three months.

         13                 While we understand that Fair Share

         14  analysis is necessary according to the City Charter,

         15  we could have been apprised of the need for one

         16  early on when the Office of the Criminal Justice

         17  Coordinator learned of our move.

         18                 Now, after stalling tactics and other

         19  delays in awarding us the money already promised by

         20  the City Council, to request this documentation at

         21  this time nine months after the move and six months

         22  after the grants should have been awarded, seems

         23  quite unfair.

         24                 Any assistance the City Council can

         25  give us to secure these greatly needed dollars will
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          2  be greatly appreciated by the staff of AVP and more

          3  importantly the victims of violence we serve 24

          4  hours a day, seven days a week.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 1:07 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 13th day of April 1999.
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